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Statement of Management’s Responsibilities
JMMB Express Finance (T&T) Limited
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Management is responsible for the following:

*  Preparing and fairly presenting the financial statements of IMMB Express Finance (T&T)
Limited (the Company) , which comprise of statement of financial position as at March 31,
2019, statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information;

*  Ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records;
=  Selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying them in a consistent manner;

*  Implementing, monitoring and evaluating the system of internal control that assures security
of the Company’s assets, detection/prevention of fraud and the achievement of the
Company’s operational efficiencies;

¢  Ensuring that the system of internal control operated effectively during the reporting period;

o  Producing reliable financial reporting that complies with laws and regulations, including the
Companies Act; and

e  Using reasonable and prudent judgement in the determination of estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, management utilised the International Financial Reporting
Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Trinidad and Tobago. Where International Financial Reporting
Standards presented alternative accounting treatments, management chose those considered most
appropriate in the circumstances.

Nothing has come to the attention of management to indicate that the Company will not remain a
going concem for the next twelve months from the reporting date, or from the date the financial
statements have been authorised for issue, if later.

Management affirms that it has carried out its responsibilities as outlined above.

el gL

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financi{yfﬁcer /

Date: June 17, 2019 Date: June 17, 2019




KPMG

Chartered Accountants

Savannah East Tel.: {868) 612-KPMG
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
JMMB Express Finance (T&T) Limited
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of JMMB Express Finance (T&T) Limited {‘JEF’), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2019, the statements of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of JEF as at March 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (JSAs}. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of JEF in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants {IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and with the
|IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Rasponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statemants (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing JEF's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate JEF or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing JEF's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stataments

Our objectives are to obtain rgasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of JEF's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on JEF's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause JEF to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achiaves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

oS

Chartered Accountants
Port of Spain

Trinidad and Tobago
June 17, 2019




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2019

Notes 2019 2018

$°000 3000

ASSETS
Cash at bank — deposited with parent 9,834 11,881
Due from financial institutions 143 -
Balances with Central Bank 863 168
Loans and advances to customers 5 29,242 10,447
Investment securities 6 440 3,359
Other assets, prepayments and accrued income 8 1,099 116
Deferred tax asset 9 1,393 28
Corporation tax recoverable 3i4 236
Property, plant and equipment 10 3.005 132
Total assets 46,333 26,367
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Customers’ deposiis 11 226 224
Due to parent 4 23,294 950
Other liabilities and accruals 12 911 394
Defermred tax liability 9 180 17
Total liabilities 24.611 1.585
EQUITY
Stated capital 13 15,000 15,000
Retained earnings 4,674 7,204
Statutory reserve fund 2,044 2,044
General loss reserve - 534
Investmem revaluation reserve 4 -
Total equity 21,722 24,782
Total liabilities and equity 46,333 26,367

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.

Director

Director

e
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JMMRB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED

(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended March 31, 2019
Notes 2019 2018
$°000 5000
Interest income calculated using effective interest method 14 2,891 1,104
Interest expense 15 (82) (135)
NET INTEREST INCOME 2.809 1,089
OTHER INCOME
Gain on sale of investments - 218
Fees and commissions 649 51
Dividends - 7
649 276
OPERATING INCOME 3.458 1,365
Operating expenses 16 6,548 918
Impairment losses 7 37 -
6.985 018
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (3,527) 447
Taxation 18 1.097 (133)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holder (2,430) 314
Other Comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of available-for-sale investments - (122)
Net loss on investment in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 4 -
Total comprehensive income for year attributable
to equity holder Qa6 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED

(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended March 31, 2019

Statutory General Investment
Stated  Retained Reserve Loss Revaluation Total
Capital Earnings Fund Reserve  Reserve Egnity
5’000 $°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Balance as at March 31, 2017 15,000 6,921 2013 534 122 24,550
Revaluation adjustment on
available for sale investments - - - - (122) (122)
Profit for the year - 314 - - - 314
Total comprehensive income
Jor the year - 314 - - (122) 192
Transactions with equity holder
Transfer (from) to statutory
reserve fund - an 31 - - -
Total transactions with equity
holder - (31) 31 - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 15000 7,204 2,044 334 - 24.782
Changes on initial application
of IFRS 9 (Note 3(a)(ii)) - {634) - - - (634)
Restated balance as at
April 1,2018 15000 6570 2,044 234 = 24,148
Net movement in fair value of
debt instruments-at FVOCI - - - - 4 4
Loss for the year - (2.430) - - - {2.430
Total comprehensive income
Jor the year (2.430) - - 4 (2.426)
Transactions with equity holder
Transfer (from) to statutory
reserve fund - - - - - =
Transfer from general loss reserve - 534 - (534) - =
Total transactions with equity
holder - 534 - (534) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 15000 _ 4,674 2,044 - 4 21,722

The accompanying noles are an infegral part of these financial statements.




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2019
2019 2018
$°000 5000
CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation (3,527) 447
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 241 19
Impairment loss on loans 667 -
Impairment loss on investments 4 s
Loss on disposal of asset 33 -
Gain on sale of investments - {218)
(2,582) 248
Changes in:
- Reserves with Central Bank {695) 3,497
- Loans and advances (20,129) 4,004
- Other assets, prepayments and accrued income (982) 62
- Customer deposits and repurchase agreements - 2
- Amounts due to parent company 22,344 6
- Other liabilities and accruals 517 87
Taxes paid {184) {185)
Tax refund received 2 -
Net cash (used in) from operating activities (1,709 7.721
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,113) (34)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments 2,937 724
Purchase of investments {19) (44)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (195) 646
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents {1,904) 8,367
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 11.881 3,514
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 9977 11,881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPRESENTED BY:
Cash deposited with parent 0,834 11,881
Due from other financial institutions 143 -
9,977 11,881
Supplemental information:
Interest received during the year 2,436 1042
Interest paid during the year 18 11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

WNotes to the Financial Staternents

March 31, 2019

l.

General Information

JMMB Express Finance (T&T) Limited (JEF/the Company and formerly Intercommercial
Trust and Merchant Bank Limited) was incorporated in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago
in January 2001 and commenced operations in October 2001. The company changed its name
effective July 25, 2018 and is now focused primarily on consumer lending. Its registered office
was also changed to 86 Ramsaran Street, Chaguanas. JEF is a wholly owned subsidiary of
JMMB Bank (T&T) Limited (JMMB Bank).

On September 8, 2017 the ultimate parent of JMMB Bank and JEF was changed from Jamaica
Money Market Brokers Limited to JMMB Group Limited which is domiciled in Jamaica and
is the ultimate parent of all subsidiaries in the JMMB Group.

As a licensed trust company, merchant bank and finance house/finance company, it operates
under a licence from the Financial Institutions Act, 2008. Principal activities under this licence
include providing medium and long term finance, mortgages, accepting medium and long term
fixed deposits from the public, invoice financing, trade and inventory financing, investment
services, leasing, project financing and arranging and underwriting issues of marketable
securities.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 17,
2019,

Basis of Preparation

(a} Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This is the first set of JEF’s financial statements in which IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
and IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers have been applied.

Details of JEF’s accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in
note 3 below.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

2,

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(c)

(@)

Fuanctional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency®). The
financial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars, which is JEF’s
functional and presentation currency, unless otherwise stated. All amounts are rounded
to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of judgements and critical estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldam equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
Jjudgement in applying JEF’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the related notes together
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Allowance for impairment losses
Policy from April 1, 2018

Loans accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis
described in accounting policy note 3(b).

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (ECL)

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assects
measured at amortised cost and FVOQOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behaviour (e.g. the likelithood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
ECL is further detailed in note 22(a)(ii)(3), which also sets out key sensitivities of
the ECL to changes in these elements.

10



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

2.

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(d} Use of judgemenis and critical estimaftes (continued)

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

@

(i)

Allowance for impairment losses (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

¢ Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

¢ Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

» Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios
for each type of product/market and the associated ECL;

e Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring
ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by JEF in the above
areas is set out in note 22(a)(ii).

Policy prior April 1, 2018

The Group’s determination of impairment is based upon management’s best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, management makes judgments about the
counterparty’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying
collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by
the finance and credit functions.

The accuracy of the allowances depends on the accuracy of the estimated future
cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and
parameters that are used and the actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the impairment allowances.

Financial asset and financial liability classification

JEF’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated
on inception into different accounting categories in certain circumstances.

In classifying financial assets or financial liabilities as “fair value through profit or
loss™ (FVTPL) “hold to collect and sell” and “hold to collect, JEF has determined
that it meets the criteria for this classification set out in accounting policy 3{aXi).

11



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trost and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

2,

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(@) Use of judgements and critical estimates (continued)

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ifi) Determining fair values with significant unobservable inputs

)

The determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which
there is no observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques as
described in Note 24. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have
little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of
judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors,
pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Deferred tax assefs

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Plant and equipment

Management exercises judgement in determining whether costs incurred can accrue
sufficient future economic benefits to JEF to enable the cost to be treated as a capital
expense. Further judgment is used upon annual review of the residual values and
useful lives of all capital items to determine any necessary adjustments to carrying
value.

12



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
{formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Changes in accounting policies

JEF has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of
April 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts previously recognised in the financial statements. JEF did not early adopt any of
IFRS 9 in previous periods.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, JEF elected not to restate
comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the opening retained earnings and
other reserves of the current period. JEF has also elected to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of IAS 39 on adoption of IFRS 9,

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in our accounting policies for
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards
dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures®,

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 disclasures
have also only been applied to the current period. The comparative period notes
disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the prior year.

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on JEF.
Further details of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current period (as
well as the previous IAS 39 accounting policies applied in the comparative period) are
described in more detail in note 3(b) below.

JEF also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, effective for
accounting periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2018 and which replaces IAS 11,
Construction Contracts, [AS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 135, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. It
does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall
in the scope of other IFRSs. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount
of fee and commission income from contracts with customers and the related assets and
liabilities recognised by JEF.

13



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Interecommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

{ti)

Classification and measurement of financial instrumenis

The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 at April 1, 2018 are compared as

follows:
JAS 39 IFRS 9
Measurement Carrying Measurement Carrying
Catesory Amount Catepory Amount
$000 $000
Cash and cash equivalenis,
balances with
Central Bank and other
financial institutions Amorlised Costs 12,048 Amortised Costs 12,048
Loans and
advances to Amortised Costs 10,447 Amontised Costs 9,813
customers (Loans and
Receivables)
Investment Securities Fair Value through PL 2,973 Fair Valve through PL 2,973
Available for sale-debt 386 Fair Value throngh OCI 386

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9

JEF performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial

assets and analysis of their cash flow characteristics.

Please refer to note 3(b)(iii) policy from April 1, 2018 for more detailed information
regarding the new classification requirements of IFRS 9.

14



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

Changes in accounting pelicies (continued)
{ii) Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9
(continued)
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their
previous measurement category in accordance with IAS 39 to their new
measurement categories upon transition to IFRS 9 on April 1, 2018:
IAS 39 IFRS 9
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount
March 3i, April 1,
2018 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
$’000 300 5000 5000
Amortisation Cost
Cash and cash equivalents,
balanees with Central Bank
and other Financial Institutions
Onening balance under IAS 39
and closing under IFRS 9 12,048 ~ - - ) 12,048
Loans and advances to customers
Opening balance under IAS 39 10,447 - - 10,447
Expected Credit Loss = - {634) (634)
Closing under IFRS 9 10,447 - (634) 9.813
Fair value through profit or loss
Opening balance under [AS 39 and
closing under IFRS 9 2.973 - - 2973
Fair value through other comprehensive
income Investment Securities — Debt
Opening balance under [1AS 39 336 - - 386
Addition — From Available for sale (IAS 39) - - - -
Addition — From Held to Maturity (IAS 39) - - . -
Expected Credit Loss - = 5 -
Closing under IFRS 9 __386 e ——— S — 386
The following shows that impact of the transition 10 1FRS 9 on Relained Eamings.
$'at0
Retained enrnings
Closing balance under [AS 39 as al March 31, 2018 7,204
Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9:
- Loans and advances 1o customers L63d)
Closing balance under IFRS 9 as a1 April 1,2018 6,370




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
{formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statemnents

March 31, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Reconciliation of impairment allowance balance from IAS 39 to IFRS 9
The following table reconciles the prior period’s closing impairment allowance

measured in accordance with the IAS 39 incurred loss model to the new impairment
allowance measured in accordance with the [FRS 9 expected loss model at April 1,

2018:
JAS 39 IFRS 9
Loan Loss Loan Loss
Allowance Allowance
Under Under
I Remeasurement IFRS 9
5000 $:000 $000
Loans and receivables (IAS 39/
Amortised cost (IFRS 9)
Cash and Cash equivalents, balances
with Central Bank and other
Financial Institutions - - -
Loans and advances to customers - 634 634
Investment Securilies - - -
- 634 634
Available for Sale Financisl
Instruments {(IAS) 39 Financial
Assets at FYOCI (IFRS 9) - T et =

{b) Financial instruments

Policy from April 1. 2018

(i) JEF’'s financial instruments fall under the following categories:

(a) Loans and advances fo customers

JEF’s loans and advances to customers are debt instruments with fixed or
determinable payments and that are managed mainly for the collection of the
contractual cash flows that management has classified within a hold to collect
business model and are measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9. The detailed

classification and measurement criteria are noted below,

16



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED

(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended March 31, 2019

Statutory General Investment
Stated  Retained Reserve Loss Revaluation Total
Capital Earnings Fund Reserve  Reserve Egnity
5’000 $°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Balance as at March 31, 2017 15,000 6,921 2013 534 122 24,550
Revaluation adjustment on
available for sale investments - - - - (122) (122)
Profit for the year - 314 - - - 314
Total comprehensive income
Jor the year - 314 - - (122) 192
Transactions with equity holder
Transfer (from) to statutory
reserve fund - an 31 - - -
Total transactions with equity
holder - (31) 31 - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 15000 7,204 2,044 334 - 24.782
Changes on initial application
of IFRS 9 (Note 3(a)(ii)) - {634) - - - (634)
Restated balance as at
April 1,2018 15000 6570 2,044 234 = 24,148
Net movement in fair value of
debt instruments-at FVOCI - - - - 4 4
Loss for the year - (2.430) - - - {2.430
Total comprehensive income
Jor the year (2.430) - - 4 (2.426)
Transactions with equity holder
Transfer (from) to statutory
reserve fund - - - - - =
Transfer from general loss reserve - 534 - (534) - =
Total transactions with equity
holder - 534 - (534) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 15000 _ 4,674 2,044 - 4 21,722

The accompanying noles are an infegral part of these financial statements.




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2019
2019 2018
$°000 5000
CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation (3,527) 447
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 241 19
Impairment loss on loans 667 -
Impairment loss on investments 4 s
Loss on disposal of asset 33 -
Gain on sale of investments - {218)
(2,582) 248
Changes in:
- Reserves with Central Bank {695) 3,497
- Loans and advances (20,129) 4,004
- Other assets, prepayments and accrued income (982) 62
- Customer deposits and repurchase agreements - 2
- Amounts due to parent company 22,344 6
- Other liabilities and accruals 517 87
Taxes paid {184) {185)
Tax refund received 2 -
Net cash (used in) from operating activities (1,709 7.721
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,113) (34)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments 2,937 724
Purchase of investments {19) (44)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (195) 646
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents {1,904) 8,367
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 11.881 3,514
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 9977 11,881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPRESENTED BY:
Cash deposited with parent 0,834 11,881
Due from other financial institutions 143 -
9,977 11,881
Supplemental information:
Interest received during the year 2,436 1042
Interest paid during the year 18 11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

WNotes to the Financial Staternents

March 31, 2019

l.

General Information

JMMB Express Finance (T&T) Limited (JEF/the Company and formerly Intercommercial
Trust and Merchant Bank Limited) was incorporated in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago
in January 2001 and commenced operations in October 2001. The company changed its name
effective July 25, 2018 and is now focused primarily on consumer lending. Its registered office
was also changed to 86 Ramsaran Street, Chaguanas. JEF is a wholly owned subsidiary of
JMMB Bank (T&T) Limited (JMMB Bank).

On September 8, 2017 the ultimate parent of JMMB Bank and JEF was changed from Jamaica
Money Market Brokers Limited to JMMB Group Limited which is domiciled in Jamaica and
is the ultimate parent of all subsidiaries in the JMMB Group.

As a licensed trust company, merchant bank and finance house/finance company, it operates
under a licence from the Financial Institutions Act, 2008. Principal activities under this licence
include providing medium and long term finance, mortgages, accepting medium and long term
fixed deposits from the public, invoice financing, trade and inventory financing, investment
services, leasing, project financing and arranging and underwriting issues of marketable
securities.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 17,
2019,

Basis of Preparation

(a} Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This is the first set of JEF’s financial statements in which IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
and IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers have been applied.

Details of JEF’s accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in
note 3 below.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

2,

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(c)

(@)

Fuanctional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency®). The
financial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars, which is JEF’s
functional and presentation currency, unless otherwise stated. All amounts are rounded
to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of judgements and critical estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldam equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
Jjudgement in applying JEF’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the related notes together
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Allowance for impairment losses
Policy from April 1, 2018

Loans accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis
described in accounting policy note 3(b).

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (ECL)

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assects
measured at amortised cost and FVOQOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behaviour (e.g. the likelithood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
ECL is further detailed in note 22(a)(ii)(3), which also sets out key sensitivities of
the ECL to changes in these elements.

10
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2.

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(d} Use of judgemenis and critical estimaftes (continued)

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

@

(i)

Allowance for impairment losses (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

¢ Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

¢ Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

» Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios
for each type of product/market and the associated ECL;

e Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring
ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by JEF in the above
areas is set out in note 22(a)(ii).

Policy prior April 1, 2018

The Group’s determination of impairment is based upon management’s best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, management makes judgments about the
counterparty’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying
collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by
the finance and credit functions.

The accuracy of the allowances depends on the accuracy of the estimated future
cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and
parameters that are used and the actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the impairment allowances.

Financial asset and financial liability classification

JEF’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated
on inception into different accounting categories in certain circumstances.

In classifying financial assets or financial liabilities as “fair value through profit or
loss™ (FVTPL) “hold to collect and sell” and “hold to collect, JEF has determined
that it meets the criteria for this classification set out in accounting policy 3{aXi).

11
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2,

Basis of Preparation (continued)

(@) Use of judgements and critical estimates (continued)

Key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ifi) Determining fair values with significant unobservable inputs

)

The determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which
there is no observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques as
described in Note 24. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have
little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of
judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors,
pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Deferred tax assefs

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Plant and equipment

Management exercises judgement in determining whether costs incurred can accrue
sufficient future economic benefits to JEF to enable the cost to be treated as a capital
expense. Further judgment is used upon annual review of the residual values and
useful lives of all capital items to determine any necessary adjustments to carrying
value.

12
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Changes in accounting policies

JEF has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of
April 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts previously recognised in the financial statements. JEF did not early adopt any of
IFRS 9 in previous periods.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, JEF elected not to restate
comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the opening retained earnings and
other reserves of the current period. JEF has also elected to continue to apply the hedge
accounting requirements of IAS 39 on adoption of IFRS 9,

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in our accounting policies for
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards
dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures®,

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 disclasures
have also only been applied to the current period. The comparative period notes
disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the prior year.

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on JEF.
Further details of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current period (as
well as the previous IAS 39 accounting policies applied in the comparative period) are
described in more detail in note 3(b) below.

JEF also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, effective for
accounting periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2018 and which replaces IAS 11,
Construction Contracts, [AS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 135, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. It
does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall
in the scope of other IFRSs. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount
of fee and commission income from contracts with customers and the related assets and
liabilities recognised by JEF.

13



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Interecommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

{ti)

Classification and measurement of financial instrumenis

The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 at April 1, 2018 are compared as

follows:
JAS 39 IFRS 9
Measurement Carrying Measurement Carrying
Catesory Amount Catepory Amount
$000 $000
Cash and cash equivalenis,
balances with
Central Bank and other
financial institutions Amorlised Costs 12,048 Amortised Costs 12,048
Loans and
advances to Amortised Costs 10,447 Amontised Costs 9,813
customers (Loans and
Receivables)
Investment Securities Fair Value through PL 2,973 Fair Valve through PL 2,973
Available for sale-debt 386 Fair Value throngh OCI 386

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9

JEF performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial

assets and analysis of their cash flow characteristics.

Please refer to note 3(b)(iii) policy from April 1, 2018 for more detailed information
regarding the new classification requirements of IFRS 9.

14
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(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

Changes in accounting pelicies (continued)
{ii) Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAS 39 to IFRS 9
(continued)
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their
previous measurement category in accordance with IAS 39 to their new
measurement categories upon transition to IFRS 9 on April 1, 2018:
IAS 39 IFRS 9
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount
March 3i, April 1,
2018 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
$’000 300 5000 5000
Amortisation Cost
Cash and cash equivalents,
balanees with Central Bank
and other Financial Institutions
Onening balance under IAS 39
and closing under IFRS 9 12,048 ~ - - ) 12,048
Loans and advances to customers
Opening balance under IAS 39 10,447 - - 10,447
Expected Credit Loss = - {634) (634)
Closing under IFRS 9 10,447 - (634) 9.813
Fair value through profit or loss
Opening balance under [AS 39 and
closing under IFRS 9 2.973 - - 2973
Fair value through other comprehensive
income Investment Securities — Debt
Opening balance under [1AS 39 336 - - 386
Addition — From Available for sale (IAS 39) - - - -
Addition — From Held to Maturity (IAS 39) - - . -
Expected Credit Loss - = 5 -
Closing under IFRS 9 __386 e ——— S — 386
The following shows that impact of the transition 10 1FRS 9 on Relained Eamings.
$'at0
Retained enrnings
Closing balance under [AS 39 as al March 31, 2018 7,204
Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9:
- Loans and advances 1o customers L63d)
Closing balance under IFRS 9 as a1 April 1,2018 6,370




JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
{formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statemnents

March 31, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Reconciliation of impairment allowance balance from IAS 39 to IFRS 9
The following table reconciles the prior period’s closing impairment allowance

measured in accordance with the IAS 39 incurred loss model to the new impairment
allowance measured in accordance with the [FRS 9 expected loss model at April 1,

2018:
JAS 39 IFRS 9
Loan Loss Loan Loss
Allowance Allowance
Under Under
I Remeasurement IFRS 9
5000 $:000 $000
Loans and receivables (IAS 39/
Amortised cost (IFRS 9)
Cash and Cash equivalents, balances
with Central Bank and other
Financial Institutions - - -
Loans and advances to customers - 634 634
Investment Securilies - - -
- 634 634
Available for Sale Financisl
Instruments {(IAS) 39 Financial
Assets at FYOCI (IFRS 9) - T et =

{b) Financial instruments

Policy from April 1. 2018

(i) JEF’'s financial instruments fall under the following categories:

(a) Loans and advances fo customers

JEF’s loans and advances to customers are debt instruments with fixed or
determinable payments and that are managed mainly for the collection of the
contractual cash flows that management has classified within a hold to collect
business model and are measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9. The detailed

classification and measurement criteria are noted below,

16
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(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)
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March 31, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments {continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

®

(ii)

JEF’s financial instruments fall under the following categories: (continued)

(6) Investment Securities

JEF’s investment securities include both debt and equity instruments. These
instruments are classified and measured according to the business model for
managing each asset as well as based on the cash flow characteristics of each
instrument as detailed below.

(¢) Customer Deposits

Deposits from customers are the JEF’s main source of funding and fall under
the categories of savings, demand or time deposits, and are measured at
amortised cost according to the business model for managing these
instrurnents.

Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance,

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
hiability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost
before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction
costs, premiums or discounts and fees that are integral to the effective interest rate,
such as origination fees. For purchased or originated credit-impaired (‘POCI’)
financial assets - assets that are credit-impaired at initial recognition - JEF calculates
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on the amortised
cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the
impact of expected credit losses in estimated future cash flows.

17
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(8} Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

(i) Measurement methods (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (continued)

When JEF revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the
respective financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate
discounted using the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income calculated using effective interest method

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

(a) POCI financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

(b) Financial assets that are not ‘POCI’ but have subsequently become credit-
impaired (or ‘stage 3°), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e.net of the expected credit
loss provision).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which JEF
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, JEF measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair
value plus or minus transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial assct or financial liability, such as fees
and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Inmediately
after nitial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, as described in note 3(b)(iii), which results in an accounting
loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

18
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 {continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Measurement methods {continued}
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets (i.e. Level 2 input) the difference is
recognised as a gain or loss.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

From April 1, 2018, JEF has applied I[FRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
e  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
*  Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described
below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial
liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as loans, government and corporate
bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements
without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

(i) JEF's business model for managing the asset; and
(ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

19
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b} Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

(iii) Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Based on these factors, JEF classifies its debt instruments into one of the following
three measurement categorics:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(*SPPI’), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognised and measured as described in note 3(b). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “Interest and similar income’ using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and
that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVQOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “Net Investment
income’. Interest income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the profit or loss statement within ‘gains/losses
on investments at FVTPL’ in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income” using the effective interest
rate method.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 {continued)

(iii) Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss: (continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how JEF manages the assets in
order to generate cash flows. That is, whether JEF’s objective is solely to collect
the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is
applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial
assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.,
Factors considered by JEF in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were
collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers
are compensated. An example is the liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held
by JEF as part of liquidity management and is generally classified within the
hold to collect and sell business model. Securities held for trading are held
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking, These securities
are classified in the ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, JEF assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (the ‘SPPI test’).

In making this assessment, JEF considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(b) Financial instruments {continued)

Policy from April 1. 2018 (continued)

(iii) Financial assets (continued)
Debt instrumenis (continued)
s Fair value through profit or loss: (continued)

JEF reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to
be very infrequent.

Egquity instrumenis

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a coniractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

JEF subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss, except where JEF’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to
irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. JEF’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI
when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment
returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when JEF’s
right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the ‘net trading
income’ line in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment

JEF assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (*ECL’)
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI and
with the exposure arising from loans and commitments. JEF recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

(iii) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment (continued)

The measurement of ECL reflects:

An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes;

The time value of money; and
Reasonable and suppartable information that is available without undue cost or

effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions,

Note 22(a)(ii)(1) provides more detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is
measured.

Modification of loans

JEF sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of
loans to customers. When this happens, JEF assesses whether or not the new terms
are substantially different to the original terms. JEF does this by considering, among
athers, the following factors:

If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely
reduces the contractual cash flows to amounts the borrawer is expected to be
able to pay.

Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, that substantially affects the
risk profile of the loan.

Material change of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
Significant change in the interest rate.

Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly
affect the credit risk associated with the loan,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

(iii) Financial assets (continued)
Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, JEF derecognises the original financial asset
and recognises a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest
rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date
of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose
of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
JEF also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-
impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation
was driven by the debior being unable to make the originally agreed payments.
Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or
loss on derecognition.

[f the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does
not result in derecognition, and JEF recalculates the gross carrying amount based
on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by
discounting the modified cash flows at the ariginal effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets).

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either

(i) JEF transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or

(i) JEF neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and JEF has not retained control.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1, 2018 (continued)

(iti) Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification (continued)

JEF enters into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from assets but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as ‘pass through’ transfers that result in derecognition
if JEF:

(i) Has no obligation toa make payments unless it collects equivalent amounts
from the assets;

(ii) Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(ii1) [Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the assets without material
delay.

Collatera] (shares and bonds) furnished by JEF under standard repurchase
agreements and securities lending and borrowing transactions are not derecognised
because JEF retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore not
met,

Financial liabilities
Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities of JEF are classified and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished {i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy from April 1. 2018 (continued)

(iv) Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The exchange between JEF and its original lenders of debt instruments with
substantially different terms, as well as substantial modifications of the terms of
existing financial liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. In
addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the instrument is
denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also taken into consideration.
If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability
and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Policy prior to April 1, 2018

Financial instruments comprise balances with and due to and from related parties, cash
and cash equivalents, due from other financial institutions, investment securities, loans
and advances to customers, debt securities and customers’ deposits.

@)

Recognition and initial measurement

JEF initially recognises loans and advances to customers, deposits and debt
securities issued on the date at which they are disbursed, booked and issued
respectively. All other financial assets and labilities (including assets and liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade
date at which JEF becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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3. Significant Accounting Palicies (continued)

(8} Financial instrumenis (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

(ii) Classification

Financial assets
JEF classifies its financial assets into one of the following categories:

loans and advances to customers and receivables;
held-to-maturity;

available-for-sale; and

fair value through profit or loss; and within this category as:
- held for trading; or

- designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when JEF provides money or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivable.

Held-to-maturity

‘Held-to-maturity investments’ are non-derivative assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity that JEF has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss or as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. A sale or reclassification of a
more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments would result
in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale,
and would prevent JEF from classifying investment securities as held-to-
maturity for the current and the following two financial years. However, sales
and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not trigger
a reclassification:

- Sales or reclassifications that are so close to matunty that changes in the
market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the financial
asset’s fair value;
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b} Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Classification {(continued)

Financial asseis (continued)

. Held-to-maturity {continued)

- Sales or reclassifications after JEF has collected substantially all of the
asset’s original principal; and

- Sales or reclassifications that are atiributable to non-recurring isolated
events beyond JEF’s control that could not have been reasonably
anticipated.

e Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not
classified as another category of financial assets. Available-for-sale
investments comprise equity securities and debt securities. Unquoted equity
securities whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are carried at cost. All
other available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value after initial
recognition,

o Fairvalue through profit or loss

JEF designates the securities at fair value, with any subsequent fair value
changes recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial lighilities

JEF classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition
Financigl assets

JEF derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or in a transaction in which JEF neither fransfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but it does not retain control of
the financial asset.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b} Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

(iii) Derecognition {continued)

{iv)

v)

Financial assets {continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred),
and the sum of:

(i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed); and

(ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income (OCI) is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

JEF derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, JEF has a legal right to set off
the recognised amounis and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity
amount, premium or discount minus any reduction for impairment.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

(vi)

(vii}

Fair value measurement

*Fair value’ is the price that would be exchanged to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in markets to which JEF has access at that date,

When available, JEF measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then JEF uses valuation techniques
that seek to use relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction,

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received.

JEF uses the fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair
value into three levels being level 1, level 2 and level 3. This is discussed in greater
detail in Note 24.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then
JEF measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.

JEF recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Designation at fair value through profit or loss
JEF may designate financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in either of the following circumstances:

- The assets or liahilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a
fair value basis.

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued})

(viii)

Impairment of financial assets

At each financial reporting period, the JEF assesses whether there is objective
evidence that suggests a financial asset or group of assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset (a "loss event™) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired include:

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

- Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

- Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

- Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

- Initiation of bankrupicy proceedings;

- Deterioration of the borrower's competitive position;

- Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

- Downgrading below investment grade level, where appropriate.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and advances to
customers has been incurred, the amount of the allowance for impairment is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of expected future cash flows, including amounts
recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective
interest rate of loans. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The allowance which is made during the year, less amounts released and
recoveries of bad debts previously written off, is charged against the profit or loss.
When a loan is deemed uncallectible, it is written off against the related allowance
for losses.

Where possible the JEF seeks to restructure loans rather than take possession of
collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the
arrangement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been restructured, the
loan is no longer considered past due. Management continuously reviews
restructured loans to ensure that all conditions are met and future payments are
likely to occur.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

(viii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amouni

The recoverable amount of the JEF’s loans and advances to customers is
calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these financial assets).

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and
value In use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in reserves is recognised
in the profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in the profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in reserves.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed
if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. The decrease in the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale is not reversed through the profit or loss.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occwrring afier the impairment
loss was recognised in the profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed,
with the amount of the reversal recognised in the profit or loss.
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(b) Financial instruments (continued)

Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market. These are classified as
loans and receivables. Loans and advances to customers are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently stated at amortised cost, net of any provisions for credit losses using the
effective interest method.

A loan is classified as non-accrual when the principal or interest is 90 days past due.
Interest on loans over 90 days past due is no longer accrued and taken to income on an
ongoing basis because there is doubt as to the recoverability of the balance.

A loan is classified as impaired when there is objective evidence that JEF will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual terms of the loan.

Investment securities

All purchases and sales of investment securitics that require delivery within the time
frame established by regulation or market convention are recognised at trade date,

(i) At fair value through profit or loss

Securities at fair value through profit or loss are trading securities which were either
acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s
margin, or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
profit taking exists. Trading securities are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently re-measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices at reporting date.
Where the instrument is not actively traded or quoted on recognized exchanges, fair
value is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. Where discounted cash
flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the reporting date for
an instrument with similar terms and conditions.

All related realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in other income.
Interest earned whilst holding trading securities is reported as interest income.
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(b} Financial instruments (continued)

{c)

Palicy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

Investment securities (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale assets are financial assets that are not financial assets at fair value
through profit or less, loans by JEF or held to maturity. These are initially measured
at cost.

After initial recognition, investments which are classified as “available-for-sale” are
measured at fair value in the same manner described above, with unrealised gains
or losses on revaluation recognised as a separate component of equity until the
investment is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss or gain previously
reported in the unrealised investment reserve is included in profit or loss.

Any available-for-sale asset that does not have a quoted market price in an active
market and where fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost less
impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are other investments which JEF’s management has the
positive intentions and ability to hold to maturity, These investments are carried at
amortised cost less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective
interest method.

Customers’ deposits

Customers’ deposits are JEF's main source of funding. These are classified in accordance
with their contractual terms, typically financial liabilities. Customers’ deposits are
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Revenue recognition
(i) Inlerest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised on the accruals basis in profit or loss
for all interest bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield
method based on the actual purchase price. Interest income includes coupons
carned on fixed income investment and trading securities as well as accrued
discount and premium on treasury bills and other instruments. Interest income is
reversed when loans are 90 days overdue and considered non-performing.
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(b) Financial instruments (continued)

{c) Revenue recognition (continued)

{d)

()

(1)

(ifi)

Interest income and expense (continued)

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected
life of the financial instrument, ar where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fee and commission income

Unless included in the effective interest calculation in accordance with IFRS
9, the majority of JEF’s fees are transactional in nature and are recognised on
an accrual basis as the service is provided. Commissions and fees not integral
to the effective interest arising from negotiating or participating in negotiation
of a transaction for a third party are recognised on the completion of the
underlying transaction

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is
established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for quoted equity securities.
Dividends are reflected as a component of net trading income, net income on
other financial instruments at fair value or other operating income based on
the underlying classification of the equity instrument.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are expressed in Trinidad and Tobago dollars at the rate of
exchange ruling on the reporting date. All differences are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and equivalents include notes and coins on hand, deposits held with Central Bank
and other financial institutions, which are highly liquid financial assets with less than 90
days to maturity from the date of acquisition, are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in their fair value, and are used by JEF in the management of its short-term commitments.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial
position.

{? Related parties

fa) Definition of related parties
A party is related to JEF, if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

(a) is controlled by, or is under common control with, JEF (this includes
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

{b) has a direct or indirect interest in JEF that gives it significant influence;
or

(c) has joint control over JEF;

(ii) the party is an associate of JEF;
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which JEF is a venturer;
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of JEF or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or
(iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides
with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

{vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
JEF, or of any entity that is a related party of JEF.
(b) Identity of and iransactions and balances with, related parties

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

1/

(2)

(h)

Related parfies (continued)

(b) Identity of, and transactions and balances with, related parties (continued)

JEF has a related party relationship with its directors and key management
personnel, representing certain senior officers, its parent company and all their
affiliates.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business. These transactions were carried out on commercial terms and
conditions at market rates, except loans to officers (see Note 4).

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to JEF and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on furniture and equipment, which consist of computer hardware,
machinery and office equipment, is provided on the reducing balance method at various
rates sufficient to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on
leasehold improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the life of the
lease, or if shorter, the useful life of the asset.

The rates used are as follows:
Furniture and equipment 10% - 33 %%

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined by comparing proceeds with their carrying amount and are taken into
account in determining operating profit.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when JEF has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.

37



JMMRB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

G

07

()

Reserve requirements

In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Institutions Act, 2008, JEF is required
to hold and maintain with the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago a cash reserve balance
equivalent to 9% of total prescribed liabilities.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the Financial Institutions Act, 2008, JEF is required to transfer at the
end of each financial year no less than 10% af its net income after tax to a statutory reserve
fund, until the amount standing to the credit of the statutory reserve fund is not less than
its paid-up capital.

Accounting for leases — where JEF s the lessee

Leases entered into by JEF are all operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When the operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of a penalty is recognised as an expense in the
period in which termination takes place.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by JEF in exchange for
service rendered by employees, These include current or short-term benefits such
as salaries, bonuses, National Insurance Scheme contributions, annual leave, and
non-monetary benefits such as medical care and loans; post-employment benefits
such as pensions; and other long-term employee benefits such as termination
benefits.

Employee benefits that are earned as a result of past or current service are recognised
in the following manner: short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability,
net of payments made, and charged as expense. Post-employment benefits are
accounted for as described below.

(ii) Post employment

The parent company operates a two tiered defined contribution plan with Guardian
Life of the Caribbean Limited that is in compliance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act of Trinidad & Tobago section 134(6). Under the terms of
employment the Group (parent and subsidiary) is obligated to contribute on behalf
of all eligible employees an amount of 10% of the employees’ pensionable salary
directly to JEF's plan,
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() Employee benefits (continued)

(m)

(n)

(ii)  Post employment (continued)

In addition, all eligible employees contribute an amount of 5% of their pensionable
salary to individual annuities.

JEF’s contributions to the respective annuities are charged to profit or loss in the
year to which they relate. For the current financial period to March 31, 2019, JEF’s
contribution expense in relation to this plan for the year amounts to $176,822 (2018:
NIL).

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (as for deferred tax).

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share has been computed by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.,
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Significant Accounting Paolicies (continued)

(o)

P

{7

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of JEF’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s camrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Other assets and liabilities

Other assets and liabilities, not classified as financial instruments, are initially recognised
and subsequently measured at amortised cost in the statement of financial position with
relevant costs recognised in profit or loss.

General loss reserve

The general loss reserve is a non-distributable reserve and has been established by JEF
based on the Guidelines on Measurement, Monitoring and Control of Impaired Assets
issued by the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago.

The reserve is created through an appropriation of retained earnings and is calculated as
a percentage of the loan portfolio that is not individually assessed for provisions or
impairment as at the end of the financial year.

However, with JEF’s implementation of IFRS 9 effective April 1, 2018 management has
determined that this reserve is no longer required and the balance was released to retained
earnings during the financial year.

New, revised and amended standards and interprefations that became effective during
the year

The Company has initially adopted IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 from 1 April 2018. A number of
other new standards are also effective from 1 April 2018 but they do not have a material
effect on JEF's financial information,
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that became effective during
the year (continued)

()

Due to the transition method chosen by the Company in applying IFRS 9, comparative
information throughout these financial statements has not generally been restated to
reflect its requirements. Consequently, the related accounting pelicies from 2018 are not
consistent with those presented for 2015.

Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome Taxes, clarifies that all income tax consequences
of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are
recognized consistently with the transactions that generated the distributable profits
—i.e. in profit or loss, OCI or equity.

Amendments to [AS 23, Borrowing Costs, clarify that the general borrowings pool
used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that specifically
finance qualifying assets that are still under development or construction.
Borrowings that are intended to specifically finance qualifying assets that are now
ready for their intended use or sale — or any non-qualifying assets — are included in
that general pool. The changes are to be applied prospectively to borrowing costs
incwrred on or after the date an entity adopts the amendments,

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective

There are a number of accounting standards that have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), but which are not yet effective for the year ended
March 31, 2018. The Company does not plan on early adoption of these standards, these
include:

IFRS 16, Leases, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating
leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting mode! that is similar to
current finance lease accounting. Entities will be required to bring all major leases
on-balance sheet, recognising new assets and liabilities. The on-balance sheet liability
will attract interest; the total lease expense will be higher in the early years of a lease
even if a lease has fixed regular cash rentals. Optional lessee exemption will apply to
short- term leases and for low-value items with value of US$3,000 or less.

Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to
classify leases as finance and operating leases.

Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers is
also adopted.
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(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued-

(s) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yef effective (continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments, which is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, clarifies the accounting for income tax
treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax authorities, whilst aiming to enhance
transparency. IFRIC 23 does not introduce any new disclosures but reinforces the
need to comply with existing disclosure requirements about:

- judgements made;
- assumptions and other estimates used; and
- the potential impact of uncertainties that are not reflected.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation, which
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
removes the word “additional” so that negative compensation may be regarded as
“reasonable compensation” irrespective of the cause of the early termination.
Financial assets with these prepayment features can therefore be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9.
Retrospective application is required, subject to relevant transitional reliefs.

The Board clarified that IFRS 9 (as issued in 2014) requires prepares to:

- recalculate the amortised cost of the modified financial liability by discounting
the modified contractual cash flows using the original effective interest rate (EIR);
and

- recognize any adjustment to profit or loss.

The accounting treatment is therefore consistent with that required for modifications
of financial assets that do not result in derecognition. If the initial application of [FRS
9 results in a change in accounting policy for these modifications or exchanges, then
retrospective application is required, subject to transitional reliefs.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle, which is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

- Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations and IFRS 11, Joini
Arrangements, clarifies how a company accounts for increasing its interest in a
joint operation that meets the definition of a business. The amendments also
provide further guidance on what constitutes the previously held interest. This is
the entire previously held interest in the joint operation.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s} New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective (continued)

®

s Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)

- Amendments to [AS 12, Income Taxes, clarifies that all income tax consequences
of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity)
are recognized consistently with the transactions that generated the distributable
profits —i.e. in profit or loss, OCI or equity.

- Amendments to 1AS 23, Borrowing Costs, clarify that the general borrowings
pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that
specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development or
construction. Borrowings that are intended to specifically finance qualifying
assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale — or any non-qualifying
assets — are included in that general pool. The changes are to be applied
prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date an entity adopts the
amendments.

¢ Amendments to Reference to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020, is a
comprehensive revision of the existing framework. It covers all aspects of standard
setting from the objective of financial reporting, to presentation and disclosures. Most
of the concepts are not new, the revised framework codifies the IASB’s thinking
adopted in recent standards. Some areas such as the distinction between liabilities
and equity have been removed from the revised Framework, and are being dealt with
in separate projects.

Comparative information

Certain changes in presentation have been made in these financial statements. These
changes had no effect in the operating results or profit afier tax on the Company for the
previous year.
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4.

Related Party Balances and Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions.
Certain banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business. These transactions were carried out on normal terms and conditions at market rates.
For the year ended March 31, 2019, JEF has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating
to amounts owed by related parties (2018: NIL).

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into
with related parties for the relevant financial year.

_2019 2018
$'000 $’000
Interest paid to parent 17 13
Interest received from parent 64 66
Other liabilities and accruals 74 90
Cash balances held with parent 9,977 11,881
Deposits from parent 23,294 950
Sale of loan portfolio to Parent _8.813 -
2019 2018
$°000 $°000
Loans and Advances toc Customers
Performing loans (stage 1) 25,319 9,511
Past due but not impaired (stage (2) 4,346 936
Credit impaired loans (stage 3) 244 -
Credit impairment loss (667) s
29.242 10.447
Concentration of gross loans
Corporate - 8,203
Retail 29.242 2,154
29,242 10,447
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March 31, 2019
__ 2019 2018
$000 $'000
6. Investment Securities
(a) At fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Corporate securities 76 2.973
(b) Securities at FVOCIAvailable for sale (AFS)
Government bonds - AFS - 386
Government bonds - FVQCI 364 -
364 386
Total investment securities 440 3,359
__2019 2018
$’000 $°000
7. Impairment Loss
(a) Movement in credit impairment loss on loans
Balance at beginning of year - -
Restated (see note below) 634 -
Impairment loss for the year 33 -
Balance at end of year 667 -
(b) Impairment loss
Impairment loss on loans 33 -
Impairment loss on investments at FVOCI 4 -
37 -

Note: Restated refers to the reclassification and re-measurement of loans from 1AS 39 to

IFRS 9.

8. Other Assets, Prepayments and Accrued Income

Accounts receivable and prepayments
Accrued income

_2019 2018
$'000 $'000
693 68
_406 48
1,099 116
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March 31, 2019
_2019 2018
$000 $000
9. Deferred Tax (Asset) Liability
(i}  The deferred rax asset is attributable to the following item:

Deferred tax asset

Deferred fees (20) (28)

Tax losses (1.373) -
(A3 X) B 1Y)

Deferred tax liability

Accelerated tax depreciation 180 17
_2019 2018

$'000 $°000
(ii) The movement in the deferred tax account comprised:

Balance at beginning of year (11) 39

Amounts recognised in OCT

Investments at AFS - {53)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current deferred tax credit 171 3

Tax losses {(1,373) -

Balance at end of year (L,213) (11)
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March 31, 2019

10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital Work- Leasehold 2019
in-Progress  Improvemenis Equipment  Total
$000 2000 $000 $000

Year ended March 31, 2019
Opening net book value 34 - 98 132
Transfer from WIP (1,563) 173 1,360 -
Additions 1,578 %9 1,529 3,206
Disposals - - 92) (92)
Depreciation charge - {25) (216) (241)
Closing net book value 49 247 2709 3005
Year ended March 31, 2019
Cost 49 272 2,018 3,239
Accumulated depreciation - (25) (209) {234)
Net book value 49 247 2,709 _3,005

Capital Work- Furniture and 2018
in-Progress Equipment __ Total

$°000 $'000 $°000
Year ended March 31, 2018
Opening net book value - 117 117
Additions 34 - 34
Depreciation charge - (19) (19)
Closing net book value 34 98 132
Year ended March 31, 2018
Cost 34 1,021 1,055

{923) (923)

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value 34 98 132
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2019 2018
$’600 $'000
11. Customers’ Deposits
Time deposits 226 224
Sector analysis
Personal 226 224
_2019 2018

$°000 $°000
12. Other Liabilities and Accruals

Interest accrued on deposits 75 11
Other payables and accruals 836 383
911 394
_2019 2018
13. Stated Capital

Authorised

An unlimited number of shares of no par value

Issued and fully paid

15,000,000 ordinary shares of no par value 15,000 15,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time,
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings at the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the JEF's residual assets.

2019 2018
$'000 $°000

14. Interest Income ecalculated using effective interest method
Interest on loans and advances 2,800 981
Interest from investments 27 57
Other 64 66
_2.891 1,104
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March 31, 2019

15. Interest Expense

Interest on customer deposits
Interest on amount due to parent

16. Operating Expenses

Staff Costs

Depreciation

Operating lease rentals (Note 17}
Advertising and marketing

Bank charges

Property expenses

IT costs

Professional fees

Regulatory costs

Other operating expenses

17. Operating Leases

The total of future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable
Operating leases

The maturity profile of leases is as follows:
Less than one year

Between one year and five years

Greater than five years

The lease payments recognised in
profit or loss for the year

2019 2018
57000 $'000
17 15
65 .
82 15
_2019 2018
$'000 $°000
3,685 125
241 19
705 216
532 -
1 1
312 -
180 65
370 177
113 120
809 195
6,948 918
_2019 2018
$°000 $°000
6,690 -
1,622 -
5,068 ‘
6,690 i
205 216
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March 31, 2019
2019 2018
$°000 $°000
18. Taxation
(i}  Provision for taxation
Current year - Green Fund levy 8 3
- Corporation tax - 145
- Adjustment for prior years 97 (18)
Deferred tax expense relating to the origination
and reversal of temporary difference (1,202) 3
(L0 133

(ii) Tax reconciliation

The following is a reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of income before
taxation multiplied by the applicable tax rate:

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Profit before taxation (3.527) 447
Expected tax calculated at statutory tax rate —

35% (2018: 35%) (1,235) 156
Net income not assessable for tax - (7
Green Fund levy 8 3
Prior year over provision 97 (18)
Eflect of change in deferred tax rate - (1)
Other permanent differences 33 -

ORILTA! 133
Effective tax rate 3% 30%

19.  Contingent Liabilities

As at March 31, 2019, there were no legal proceedings outstanding against JEF, as such no
provisions were required (2018: NIL).
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20.

21.

22,

Credit Commitments

As at March 31, 2019, the Company has no commitments of a credit nature (2018: NIL).

Capital Commitments

As at March 31, 2019 JEF'S capital commitments were $700,000 (2018: NIL).

Financial Risk Management

Introduction and overview
JEF has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit Risk
Settlement Risk
Liquidity Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk

This note presents information about JEF’s exposure to each of the above risks, its objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and its management of capital.

Risk Governance

The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of JEF’s Risk Management Framework. The Board has delegated responsibilities to
various sub committees for the areas of Credit, Internal Audit and Risk Management. These
Board sub committees currently employ an integrated Enterprise Risk Management Frarnework
supported by three Management Committees in order to ensure the maximization of
shareholders’ value within JEF’s risk appetite. The Management Credit Committee, Asset and
Liability Commiitee (ALCO), and Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC), are
responsible for the development and monitoring of JEF's Risk Management policies in their
specified areas. All Board committees have non-executive members and report regularly to the
Board on their activities.

JEF’s Risk Management policies, as approved by the Board, establish a framework for
identification, assessment, analysis and measurement of the risks faced by JEF, setting of
appropriate risk limits and controls, as well as the monitoring of risks and adherence to limits
through the Enterprise Risk Dashboard. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. JEF, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to continuously develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all Team Members understand their
roles and obligations,
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22.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

The JEF Board, Audit and Risk Committees are responsible for monitoring compliance with
the Risk Management policies and procedures and for reviewing the adequacy of the Enterprise
Risk Management Framework in relation to the risks faced by JEF and in keeping with the risk
appetite. The Group Audit and Risk Committees are assisted in these functions by Internal
Audit and Risk Departments. Internal Audit undertakes both planned and special reviews of
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported quarterly to the
Board Audit committee.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to JEF if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from JEF’s
loans and advances to customers.

Management of credit risk

The Board has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its Board
Credit Committee, the Management Credit Committee and individual Team Members as
deemed necessary. A separate Credit Risk department, reporting to the Chief Risk
Officer, is responsible for oversight of JEF’s credit risk, including:

Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering credit
assessment, risk grading and reporting, collateral requirements, documentary and
legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

Establishing the auwthorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit
facilities. Authorisation limits, as approved by the Board, are allocated on an
individual basis and/or committee basis which includes the Board Credit
Committee, and the Management Credit Committee. Approval under each
comittee is based on delegated authority level as approved by the Board.

Reviewing and assessing credit risk. The Credit Risk department assesses credit
exposures prior to facilities being approved and committed to customers by the
business unit concerned. Renewals and requests for new facilities are subject to the
same assessment.
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credif risk (continued)

Management of credit risk (continued)

The Board has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its Board
Credit Committee, the Management Credit Committee and individual Team Members as
deemed necessary. A separate Credit Risk department, reporting to the Chief Risk
Officer, is responsible for oversight of JEF’s credit risk, including:

Limiting concentrations of exposure by obligor/fissuer, credit rating band and
exposure by country (for investment securities).

Developing and maintaining JEF's risk rating system and guidelines is an integral
part of the credit appraisal process. Each borrower under the business banking credit
categories has to be risk rated in accordance with the model recommended by the
Risk Unit and approved by the Board. The risk rating assigned is reviewed annually
or carlier as appropriate. The risk rating model takes into account risk relating to
management, the business, collateral security, financial performance and
transactional data. In the case of credit facilities to consumers, a scoring model is
used in the appraisal process. The risk rating or the credit score of the obligor
reflects the level of risk associated with the exposure and is the main driver in
pricing.

Reviewing compliance with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected
industries, country and cross border risk and product types. Regular reports are
provided by the Credit Risk department to the Management Credit Commitiee, the
Board Credit Committee and the Board Risk Committee on the credit quality of
JEF’s portfolios and where necessary, the appropriate corrective action is taken.

Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best
practice throughout JEF in the management of credit risk.

JEF is required to implement credit policies and procedures, with credit approval
authorities delegated to the Board Credit Committee, Management Credit Committee and
Credit Risk Officers. JEF is responsible for the quality and performance of its credit
portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its portfolios.

Repular audits of JEF’s credit processes are undertaken by Internal Audit.
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.i) Credit risk measurement

1. Financial Assets

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex
and requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market
conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of
credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the
likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default
correlations between counterparties. The Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given
Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of
measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9. Refer to note 22.(a).ii
for more details.

Credit risk grading

JEF uses internal credit risk grading that reflects its assessment of the
probability of default of individual counterparties. JEF uses internal rating
models tailored to the various categories of counterparty. Borrower and loan
specific information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and turnover and industry
type for wholesale exposures) is fed into this rating model. This is
supplemented with external data such as credit bureau scoring information on
individual borrowers. In addition, the models enable expert judgement from
the Credit Risk Officer to be fed into the final internal credit rating for each
exposure. This allows for considerations which may not be captured as part of
the other data inputs into the model. In addition, exposure to credit risk of the
investment portfolio is managed in part by investing in liquid securities with
counterparties that have high credit quality.

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases
exponentially at each higher risk grade. For example, this means that the
difference in the PD between an A and A- rating grade is lower than the
difference in the PD between a B and B- rating grade.

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for retail business, the payment behaviour
of the borrower is monitored on a periodic basis to develop a behavioural
score. Any other known information about the borrower which impacts their
creditwarthiness - Such as unemployment and previous delinguency history
- is also incorporated into the behavioural score. This score is mapped toa PD.
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22.  Financial Risk Management {continued)

(a) Credit risk {continued)

(a.i)  Credit risk measurement (continued)

1.

Financial Assets (continued)
Investment Portfolio (continued)

For debt securities in the Treasury portfolio, external rating agency credit
grades are used. These published grades are continuously monitored and
updated. The PD’s associated with each grade are determined based on
realised default rates over the prior 12 months, as published by the rating
agency.

(a.ii. 1} Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit
quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is
classified in ‘Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the
Company.

If a significant increase in credit risk (*SICR’) since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired. Please refer to the table below for a
description of how the Company determines when a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have
their ECL. measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.
Please refer to note 22.(a).ii.3 for a description of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques used in measuring the ECL.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it
should consider forward- looking information. Note 22.a.1i.4 includes an
explanation of how the Company has incorporated this in its ECL models.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit- impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Credit risk {continued)
(a.ii.1) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

-

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Significant increase in
credit risk since initial {Credit-impaired assets)
(Imitial recognition) recognition)
12-month expected Lifetime expected credit Lifetime expected
credit losses losses credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Company in addressing the
requirements of the standard are discussed below.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Company considers that there is a significant increase in credit risk for its
loans portfolio no later than when a loan is more than 30 days past due or any two-
notch downgrade in its internal ratings. The credit risk may also be deemed to
have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative factors
lined to the Group’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwisc be
fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This is the case for
exposures that meet certain heightened risk criteria such as placement on a waich
list.

The Company considers that there is a significant increase in credit risk for its
investment portfolio when there is a decrease in credit rating as follows: a three-
notch downgrade from investment grade to non-investment grade (below BBB-);
a two-notch downgrade within or outside the BB/B bucket or a one-notch
downgrade within or outside the B-, CCC, CC and C buckets.

56



LS

*Kypenb 11paro w uoreIOL)AP YURdIUFLs @ se aZiuFooa1 Jou [jim
94CE°0 01 %100 Wwoxy safuex N 10] S(Id udiazaAog pany 3 ‘padojoAap arey
SM [OPOW [ELISUI 3Y) UO Paseg] YIS € Se pattsap 9q JOU [[IM UONedyISse[d
(D) spead wsunsaAul A UM (SuoljeroUep TFunel HPaId) SIUSUIRAOIA

"SU1I3) [ENIOBNUOD PIYIpOW Y Jsulede ssuweuuojiad juswied
a1ep-01-dn Jo Lio)siy e sapnjoul Jow J33u0f ou 3k TOHH sumaji| Susiudoaan 1of
BLIAILID 31 1B1) SOUIPIAI “PIIPOUI USDQ 2ABY UBO| B JO SULID) [BIIOBIUOCD UM

*A[JUSIDIIINS PIUL[dap SBY YSLI HPatd §I1 181l 93U3PIA3 aplaoid 0) molaeyaq pood
ajensuowp 0} palnbail s josse [eroueury oy Yorym Sunmp pouad uoneqord v
sautunaop Ateduwo) Jty ‘saSED 2S3M) U] "ISIX2 0] Pasead Sey J[asjl JOJEDIpUl Ayt
1ayye sisisiad jey) J[NEJOP JO YSU PISEIIOUL UB JO ANEBIIPU] 3q LB ‘30UBIRIGI0]
Jo Asuanburjap se yons sp JIPAId UL IFBAIU] UL JO S103e01pul daljeienb swog

104 ruow-7 | se pamseaw Juraq o)
SILINJAT JUAWINISUI Ue UO 35UBMO|[R SSO[ 3Y) uay) ‘uoniufosal [eniul o) sane|al
YSLI 3IPa12 ul 3seasout JuBdIfIUBIS v J3FuUo[ OU SI AIBY) JBYL OUSPIAS SI BIAY) J]

"SSO] JIp22a pajpadxa SwaJT] U0 Paseq panseaw
st ssof juauuiedun pue gz 28ejs o) | aTels wolj pausysuel) are YSLI JIpaI0 W
aSBAIOUL JUBRDLFIUSIS B ST 2131] 1BY) PAUTULSIAP SI Y9IMm J0J SJUSWIIISU] [BIDUBUL]

(penunuod) (ADIS) S JPAJI Ul ISl JuedIYIusis

{panunUOD) MItU2NSVIUL SSO] JIPa4d papoddxy  (T1'D)

(ponunuod} s ypas)  (8)

(panunjuod) JududFBUB] YSTY [ePuUBU]  *TZ

610T “1€ Yo

SJUSUISIBLG [BIOUBUL] A1) 0] SAION

(paywmi] Yueg JUEHIIIJ PUE JSNLL] [EIDISMUI0dI)U] A[IdNLI0))
QALIAIT (L®L) AONVNIA SSTAJXH HININT



8¢

N30 31 pinoys 9nejop
Jo sum syl £q W) [en)OENUOD JUALMD 3Y] 0) dn umelp aq o) pajaradxa
SI jeq) junowe Jayuny Aue snjd soUB[Bq UMBID JUSMND BY) SIpn|oul
J44r “usuniunuod Futajoadl € 107 ‘spdurexs 1o “((Iyd sWa1T) SwafI]
Sunnzwal A1 A0 10 ((T¥H L) SYUOW Z[ IXau 2] I9A0 nejap
Jo awn oY) Je pamo aq 0 s1oadxs JH[ sjunowre ay) uo paseq S qvg e

"uonEsIqo ayy Jo ((1d Awn2yr)
A SuruIewal ay) 1340 10 ((Id WZ1) SPUOW Z] XU 1) I9A0 IS
‘(aroqe pasedun-jipaie pue J[nBJep Jo uonuyga(],, Jad se) uoneBrqo
[e1oteLly S)1 U0 Sunjnelap JaMOoLIoq € JO Pooyia3I] ) sjuasardar (Id 2y, .

:SMO[[0] S& paulap
(ADT) NNeja( UIAID ssoT pue ‘(qvI) Nneya(q 38 amsodxy () Hneja jo
Aiiqeqord a Jo jonpoid papmodssip oI} ade §3550] JpaId pajsadxy -pasedun
-JIPa1 2 0] PAISPISUOD SI JASSE UR JIUJ2YM JO UOIIUZ00al [BIIUL 30UIS PALININ0
SBY }SL JIPId Ul 258U JUBDJIUG]S B Joloym uo Suipuadap siseq swnei]
10 (NZ1) (puo-Z | & I2I9 uo painsesut st (TH) ssoT ypar) payosadxy oyl

sanbruyoay
uoyvays? puv suopdunssy ‘spdur fo noyvuvidxy - JOF Sransvap

"S3550[ JIpaid pajoadxa awisfI] UO PIseq PaIMSeaw SI SSO|
jusuutedw] pue ¢ 938)S 0] PaLI3JSUBL 318 }jNBJSP, S PIIJISSE]O SJ9SSe [BIoUBUL]

"S20UEBISILNDIID Ul S2FURYD 192[Jal 0 A1) JAAC ATeA AL IDURDLJIIAIS JIY)
PUB )[NBJOP UI SI JUSWINLSU] [BISUBUL] B JOYIUM JO JULUSSISSE oY} ojul sinduj

‘Bunmyonnsai pue Yieap ‘SJuBUACD [RIDURULJ JO IB3Iq

‘ADUDA[OSUL “30URIBIGI0] wiaRl-Fuo| ‘Aodnayueq se ons SOUBISUI WO ISLIE

Lew sigy, Aundos Surzipeal se yons sucnos o) Auedwo)) sy £q 25100021
ot “Jing ur Aueduto) at) o) uonedtqo sit Aed o1 A[2jt{un s119mont0q 2] -
sploysa1y) duries syroads puodaq Sune: jewisjur 1 3SEAIP Y -
‘dnoin sy 01 uonesiqo s uo anp Jsed sABp (g UBY) 2I0WI S JamoLIoq Sy -

:apnjou) 2say) Jo sajdumexa “Jmejap vl SI 13sse [BIDUBUI] B Ia1alm
Buruiuu)sp w s1019e) aanENenb pue saueIUEND Yloq siapisuod Auedwo)) |,

sjassv paspdun-ppaia pup jmofap fo uogrurfaqy

(c1°v)

(zuov)

(PanunuUOD) NS Jpad)  (v)

(panunuoo) yuamaeury] NSy [vroumeul g 7T

610T “1€ ydsIey

SIUBNINLIG [RISUBUIL] U]} O) SION

(payiury yuug JUBYIIIPA PUL ISR ], [EIIIIWUW0IINU] LLIULI0))
UALDATT (L®L) HONVNIA SSTAIXH GWIAIL



66

‘sISATeus [BalIO)SIY AqQ pautoddns s sy
“pueq apeid 1ipat> pue ojfojuod e uylim SIISSE [[B SSCIDR SUIES 3] 2q 0]
PALINSSE ] PUEB BIEP PIAISSQO [RILI0ISIY b0 paseq st spyord Lrmyent sy,
*SUBO} SY1 JO SWNAJI] oY1 Inoydnoryy uonuFesaa [entui Jo niod o) woy
orjopiod & uo dojeA3p sIMEJIP MOY 1€ $300] djyoad Aunjew sy ‘Ad WZI
us1mo o1} 03 a[goid LAjunjew e Suidjdde £q podoaasp S @I SWNVITSYL  »

‘Joasay uonewrxoidde ue 10 )6l
1SN AN [eUISLIO A1) SI UCHR[NI[RD TOHH S UT Pasn ).l Unoasip
ay[, "paununs pue jep Suntodas Iy o) yoBq PIUNOISIP U ST Y2IYM
QIUOW MY Yoea 10] TDH UB SIBMNO[B A|3AN094a SNy L (Yiuow Ja1jies
ue u1 pajnejap Jo piedaid jou sey amsodxa Y “5°1) [BAIAINS JO pooyIjayI]
ap Joj pasnlpe pue tampafo) paidnjnu am syusuoduros aanp asay],
uawdas 2a10a[[02 10 amnsodxa [BOPIAIPUL YoB2 J0J PUB LU0 AIyny
o9 10§ Qva pur 0T °Gd S Sunosford £q pauruuaop st IOF ML @

"WeO[ Y1 JO AW
pajaadxa SumRal A J3A0 SINIDO0 Y NRJIP Y} J1 pew aq o] pajoadxa
§s0[ Jo aZeiuadiad oy} st (IO SWBJIT pUe SYHUCW Z[ JXSU 3N} Ul SHMDI0
JneJap ay) J1 dpew aq 03 parvadxs ssof Jo agejuadiad o s1 DT Yuow-z |
aIoyMm “SISeq SUINIRJI| JO YHIow-Z [ # UG paje[najes st (IO (Vi) ynejap
Jo ow; 3y Je amsodxa jo yun 13d ssof 93muasiad e se passaidxo s1 (D]
‘poddns 11pa1s 150 10 [B13]2]]0D JO AN[IQE|IEAR PUE WIED JO AJLIOIUSS pUR
ad4y ‘Apedisyuncs Jo adA) 4q souea (0] "amsodxd paljngyep € U0 SSO|
Jo u31xa 31 Jo uoneloadxa s JAr swuasaidar ((OT) YNEJO(] ULALL) SSOT o

(panunuods) sanbruyaa;
uonpuiyss pup suoydwmssp ‘sinduy fo uoypuvidxyg - JHF Surmsvayy (cnn)

(panunuod) yskt wpas)  (v)

(ponunuos) yuswaBeuely Wsn jeuenly 7T

610T ‘1€ Yorey
S)IMUMRIG [RINUBUL] Y} 0} SAON

{parrmn yueyg JUBYIIA[A PUS JSI [, [BIXIIWMO0II) U] A[JIULIO])
QALINIT {(L®L) IONVNIA SSTNIXHA GINIAC



0%

-pouad Sunodas a1 Buunp spsw suondwnsse JuBoYIUGS
10 sonbluyo?) uopRwiiss Ul saBueyo JUBDYIUBIS OU UG SABY MY

‘siseq A[1aymenb e uo pamaiaal pue paiojuow
a1e - '019 3FuBLD SsoN[BA [RIARL|[0D MOy pue sS4 P Jo sgoid Armiew
a3 MOy S8 [ons - uonemd[ed -Ig Sy Jurdpapun suondwmsse ],

"SUONe[NO[Ed T UL UOISNOUI S)I pue uoneuuoful 3unjoo]
-pieaio} Jo uoneuejdxs ue 10] $(1)(e)zg 210U 0} Jajay ~adLy 1onpoxd
£q Area suonduwinsse asay 1 ‘(D1 pue (VT ‘(dd SWIAJI] pue Liuoui-g | 243
uuuL)op Ul PapNIoOUl OS[B SI UONBULIOJUI JTWOU0Id FUDOD|-pIEmMIO]

‘ooud pus safes 1qop
pajoRnuOd Fwpnjoul ‘Satdaens uonad[[0d £q PAduUINJUI A S (IO IS,
"SIMOLI0Q JUAIS]JIP SSOIOR PAAAYOR SILISA0IDI UI UOTJBIUAISLIP pajiuwI]
a3 03 anp [2a3] 1onpoid 18 105 A[jeo1dA) are s 0T ‘sionpotd pamossun Jog

"PAAISQO SISO A1aA00A pite UoIssassodal 0) oWl ‘Safes padio] O}
aNP SAN[BA N0OOGIEW 0} SJUNOISIP [ROUGISIY ‘sanjea [eIsig[[od paioaford
pue 2dA1 Jerie|[os wo paseq Auewud s sup ‘spnpoxd pamsss 10,

‘ad £y jonpord Aq Lrea asay ] -jnejop i1sod apeur salIvA0321 A1) 1ordun
YoIym SIOJOB] U} UG PISEq PAUIULIIOP I8 S(JL)'] SWNIJI| pue [Puow-7] Y]

*BJBP 1jNBIOP U201 S, dNOID) S1Y) JO SISATRURB UO Paskq “pueq uonesijyn
nury juaumo pue ad4y jonpord Aq Ama suondumsse asay] ‘Jnejep
Jo aum ayp £q 1wy Sugurewal s Jo umopmelp pajoadxa syl J0J smof[e
yoIym JOI08] UOISIIAUCD 11pald,, B SUlppe pue aduB[2q UMEIP JUALIND
Fuiye Aq pajotpaxd st ynejap e 2msodxs 2y ‘spnpold Jura[oaal 10

“UOTIB[NO[RD A} oI
parerodiosur osre ame suondunsse aoueuygaljuawiedal Ljreg Jamouoq e
&q apew syuawifedioao pajoadxa Aue 107 paisnlpe oq osfe {jm SIY . *SISEq
NI 10 YIUOWZ | B I9A0 JaM0LI0g oYl Aq pamo juswidedal [pryaenuod
aY) uo paseq sI s} ‘sueo] Juswiedar 1a[jnq pue sjonpoxd Juistroure 10

‘ad&y jonpoad Aq sarrea ysigm “opyord yjuswied
popadxa ay) uo paseq pPSUILLIAP A1 S(TYH SWIRJY PUe Yuow-zZ{ ag],

(ponuniuod) sanbruyorat
uoymuyss pup suopdunssoe ‘sindut fo uopnumdxsy - T Surmsvayy  (5nm)

(panuyuoo) s ypax) (k)

(Panunuod) JuawmadeueA] SN [EPWEUlY 7T

610T "¢ YoTeiy

SIUSWNE)S [RISUBUL] SY) 0] S3ION

(pPoymN] YUuBg JUBYIII[] PUE JSII ], [BIIIIWTNI0II) U] A[I21010])
QILTATT (L%L) SONVNIA SSTIIXT WAL



19

wawBpn! wadxs s JuswsFeueur aad A[Suipiosoe pajySram
usy) aIe SOLIBUSDS IPISUMOp pue apisdn Y], N30 03 OLIBUIDS AJXI[ IsoW 2y
ST pue uoneuLIOjul pasesalo] Aued panyy uodn paseq sI )t se Sunydrom ISaudry
a1} uaAIS SABM[E SI OWBUDIOS 95BQ SYL "UONIIPSLIN[ Y1 UIYNM JUSWLOIIAUD
ssouIsng pue SUOTIPUOD OIUOUOID [[BISAO0 A} Jo juowdpn( padxa Jusn
apisumop pue ‘opisdn ‘oseq 3uisq SB SOLEUADS { SIUILULISNAP USY) JUSDTRUBIA]

“10je2Ipul [ENpPIAIpUL 3
7O puan ay) uo paseq Iafdnnuw sjqesijdde ayy 4q patjdnnu sre pue yuswadpnl
uadxe sguowsSeuews Suisn PAUIILIAGD SFR  SIO)EIIPUL  DIWIOUOIIOIDEW
snolrea a Jo sdunydiam sy g, “poued pusn Yoed SuLnp suonmnsul [BIOURUY
£q paumdul S3SSO] YY) JO IOUIPIAR OILIOUOID UO paseq payoene Iadnu
e sey {2quis ‘aanedau ‘eatisod) pusy yoey ‘pusl siqes 1o ‘sanedau ‘vanisod e
sjuasaudal 10eDIpUl A1) JAL[IaYM JUIULIAJIP O} BJEP PAISEIIIO) A[QR[IRAR BU]) )M
uonjRULIOJUI [e3U0ISTY YY) Saredwios pue sisAjeue puay e suuojrad jususdeue]y

JJel uone[julI [enuuy
SIAIISIY [BUOHBLLIAIUT 19N
pmoid Jao

JCD 03 JUN0IIR JUALM))
dap 011937

:sJ01821pUl
Bummoljo] ap pajoafes sey Auedwio)) Ayl pue S[QE[IEAR 212 SISEII0J TOIYM
10J put uoneuLojul jawmn ynm paepdn are yoIyam SICIE3IPUL HUWOUOIIDIIBLL
Mmaj e Ajuo are 219y ] “BIRp JO AJTjige|rear ay) 01 preSal i saBuajeyo anbiun
Sa0e] uwaqqLIe]) Ay [ "uoleunojul Sunjoo-presio) A[dde o) ssaooad sjqeorjdnp
B §9SN puR S|qB[IBAE 338 Y] SIOEOIPUL DIUOUOIIOIORIU [BIDASS SIIPISUCD
yaeoadde siy 1 ‘yoeosdde presaloas e papdope sey JjuainaSeuew jey; yoroidde ayp
“UIYIM PIUTEIUOD SIUSWNASU] 31 pue Oljojod JUSWISIAUL ) 0) predal Yim

‘218 JO UONBIIWI] 0] Snp PAIdPISU0 ST (O] A U0 108dwr ou Jaasmoy
1apow s dnoiny 13 ur (JJ 23 o) parjdde uaaq sey yusunsnlpe HUIOUOIIOIIRN
*Qytenb orjopuod a1) 1240 2dudNJUL JUBDYIUSIS SBY JBLY] J0JOBJ JILOUOII-0IOBLI
umea AP s8 pamoid Jqo [vey siepisuca Auedwoy) oy oroptod sueo] s 10]
‘Ansnpui 2} Jo ayoId YSLI pue SSUISN( S} JO ITPIMOUY SI[qBLIBA ITWOUOID
-0IoBu JUMDPIP uo pauuojiad sisA[eue ay) uo paseq -orjopand yaes 1oy sassof
Npa1d pajoadxa pue sysu ypalo Sunoedwl sajqeLIBA S1WOLOID A3Y 24} paynuapl
pue sosAJeue [Bouo)siy pauuopied svy Auedwo) syl ‘uonBULIOIE BUjOO[
-premio} sjeiodiosut 11og T JO UonR[NO[ED 311 pUe YIS JO JUINSSISSR oY |,

spapous I Y2 up paniodioous uoyvuiofus Suiyool-pavniog  (p1°n)

(panunuod) ysu ypas)  (v)

(ponunuod) juamadeuey] Ysny epueuly ‘77

610T ‘1€ Yore|

Sjuswale)S [BloUBUI] SIf) O} SAION

(payur] yueq JURGIII[A] PUR JSAL], [VIIIWW0II2)U] A[131M10])
AALIAIT (1¥ L) ADNVYNIA SSTIAXHA HIAAI



<9

S T e — Ol o wnowy SwAie)
= = - - - aanenaais
- POt - - o€ YNEM
#puvID NP1
000.L1 t0.11  00a.Ll 000.1L 000.1L
104 Tod o) {
amnapr] sunapry  ywow-g|
=10, 1=)0,], £ ddmyg 7 2du)§ ] 28mg
RS TOd
§T0? a10C
SJUITISIAUY
LPF 01 T 6t - 98L'1 Ot LT junows Jugliie)
- L99 W £e Dot sduema|je 5507
Lrtr' 0l 606'6< (74 eI 9v8'LT wnowe Juikired ss010
- 144 LA - - i
- = 5 - - Suraopuous jerdadyg
Lpb01 £99°67 - 6181 orR'LT Zuno)uow piepue)y
ape.n) ppas)
000.S 000.8 000.§ 000.8 000.8
B0 B0l g folc] 104 104
ANy CLE! | Jjuow-g]
£ 98ys 7 S 12805
SR T3
810z 610
)y |

"51955¥ 3SINY) VO JSU J1PAId 0]
amnsodxa WINNIXBW S 31 9) Siuasaidal os[# Mo[aq 51988 [RIDURLL) JO JUnoume
FuAues ss018 oy, pasmiF0531 S1 DURMO[IR THH UR UINYM 10] Sjuaumnsur
[elouRUL] Jo ainsodxa NS NIPaId Ayl Jo sis{jeue ue surejuoa ajqe) Suimoy[of sy,

YSU J1paLO OF 24NSOdXd UWmIXOI

(o)

(panunuod) ysu ppas)  (e)

(panuniuod) yusweSeuey YSIY [e0uBUly  ZT

610T ‘1€ Yoy

SIUDWIANBIS [RIOURULJ ) 0] SAJON]

(paymr| Juey JUBYIIIJA] PUE JSTLE ], [RIDIIWHIOIINI U] A[IULIOJ)
JALIATT (L¥® L) ADNVNIA SSTAIXHT SN



£9

‘sonnba pue SU1INDIS 1GIP SB YONS SJUSWNNSUI [RIOURUL JISAO SadIey)  »

PU® {3[qeAladal
SjuNoade pue AI0JudAl ‘sostwaad Se YaTS $)9sSE SSIUISNQ JoAO SoTiRYD) e

‘sarpadold [BIoJoUNUIOD pue [BNUIPISIL IDAD SATeTUO o

;22 SIIUBAPE pue sueo| 10]
sad£) jessseqoa fedounid oy, -Ajeoipouad pamaraal ST JUSUISSISSB ST |, *s83001d
uonem3uo ueof 3y Jo pud se pauelqo [eIaNe[j03 21 Jo uonenjea e pasedoxd Jr

‘uope3NiW YSK 1P 10 [BIAL]j00
Jo sasseo oyoads Jo Ajiqedasse o) uo saiod jewul pry JI[ padueape
spung 10} [eimeqjoo Jundasse SI 2Say) JO UOWIMIOD JSOW BE] “YSL JIPaId
are8niw o) saonoeld pue satotjod Jo aFuer g padoidwa Jqr “Furpuai pamsasun
A[Te1auad SI YoIym SSaUISN] SOUBUY JUNSUOD §)1 JO JUSUIDIUIWWIOD S)E 0} IO

SIHNUIIUDYUD JPII2 LDUYIG PUY [DI2I01107)
9L SaEnaag 193
1d Y9noau} anje A areyg je paugsa( s)assy [w1dIRUL]
0005
NSO NpALH

0} aansodx7 wnumxe

}("TdLAd 52) 6 S¥1 1opun jusuriiedun o) 193[qns Jou §195s8 |BIURULY UIOL
aunsodxo JSU P20 WNUIXBW 2Y) JO SISATRUER UB SUTBIUIOD 2[qe) Suimoljo] 2y

Juawaznduit
0} 122{GNS 10U SHUIUNLSUL [DIDUDULY - YSH JPaLD 0] 24nS0dX2 WNMUIIXORY

T JUAUINSBIW $50] JIpald

pawadxy, (1)X1){e)zz s10u ur papnjoul S| paUllIdlAp ale 2A0qE Sa3e)s 29I}
ot} MOy pue pamseawt st ("THF) ssoT Mpar) paadrg sy moy uo voneuLou]

(PaNUNUOD) ¥SHL JpaLd 0) aansodxa wmmuxnpy

¢mro)

(rurn)

(mrn)

(panunuoo) {su ypar) (&)

(panunuoo) jusuraSeneAl sy Jeueuly 7T

610T “1€ Yooy

SUAUIAIE)S [BIDURUL] 91} ©) SAJON

(ponuiy yueg JurgdIa[y PUE JSOI ], [BDIIWWOdI3)u] A[I21ULI0f)
QALIATT (L%1) IONVNIA SSTAIXT NI



9

_ : — T Th7 sugo] pasysdui)
upaI) [E0Y

- - Jeisunnoyaiodion)

- - 44 e ey

stassy pasedw] Hpa1D

00,5 000.% (11,15 0008
2B L) TURoWyY PUBMOI[Y  sansodxy
J0 anjeA Jey Jugdae) juawredu 550.0)

IMO[3(] UMOUS I8 S3S50[
[enuajod 23eSKIw 0] I9pI0 UI PjAY [RIANE[[0 pAJL[21 pue pamedurl-)ipaId I
JeL) S13SSE [BIDURUL] "SI5S0 JIpa4o [enuaiod aeSniu o) [esae]jos jo uoissassod
ayel [[im JIr 18yl A[9)1] 210U JUIBD I} SB ‘paliedul-Npa1d 3q 0) PaIePIsUOD
19SS [RIAURL] 10] PIAY [RIAR[]03 palojuout A]95010 JA[ “a8usyd snp 0) Joug

‘pouad Funodas a3
Buump padueyo Apuesijiudis oary [BI9E[[0o SmpIe3al sawijod s [ ‘pamoasun
A[e1auad s1 yoigm Sulpus| JSLUNSUOY 0] SNAGJ SSIUISNG UI aTueyd Y1 PT

*SIUIWNIISUL
[etoueUl} Jo sotjofiod Aq PaInoas Ik YaIym ‘SIUSUINISUL IB[IUIS PUB SINILINOIS
paouq-lasse Jo uondaoxs ap pim ‘pamdasun L[jerousi s sqiq o[qdie
Jatpo pue Amsear) ‘SoRMN0as 13(] USWINNSUI 8y} Jo airgeu ay) uo spuadap
S3JUBAPE pUE SUBC| Uey) JOYJ0 S)asse [Bloueul) 10f £JLNoas se play [BIS)B[[0)

‘poInaasun A[e1suad a1g SAI[1IE] IPAID [ENPIAIPUI SUIA[OAS]
{pammoas Ajersuad am sannua aeiodios o) Fuipua pur asueuy UU-IaTuo]

(PanunuOd) SHSUIINDINS JIPALI S2130 pUD [DIIONOY (7°111°D)

(panunuod) swt ppary  (v)

(panumuod) yusmaBeuy WS (vlROBUL] 7T

610T ‘1€ Yore

SIUBLUMEIG [E1oUBUL] Y} O) SAI0N

(payun yuey JUBQIIAJA PUE JSILL |, [RIJIIWIWI0II3JU] AJ19MLI0])
QALINIT (L®L) AIDNVNIA SSTHIXT GINIAL



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22, Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
(a.iv) Loss allewance

The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors,
as described below:

o  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases (or decreases) of credit risk or becoming
credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” {or “step down™)
between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

e  Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the
period, as well as releases for financial instruments de-recognised in the
period;

o  Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs
in the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

e  [mpacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and
assumptions;

¢  Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured
on a present value basis;

o  Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign
currencies and other movements; and

¢  Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances
related to assets that were written off during the period.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the
beginning and the end of the annual period due to these factors:
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JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED

(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22.  Financial Risk Management {continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance {continued)

Retail

Loss allowance as at | April 2018
Movements with P&L impact

Transfers:
- Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
= Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
- Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
- Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financial assets originated
or purchased
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Changes to model assumptions and
methodologies
Modification of contractual cash flows
of financial assets
Financial assets derecognised during
the period
Write-offs

Loss allowance as at
March 31, 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ___ECL ECL Total
$000 $'000 $*000 $'000
107 527 - 634
390 i3 - 423
- = 244 244
(107) (527) - {634)
390 33 244 667
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JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.ii.l) Expected credit loss measurement (continued}

Siguificant increase in credit risk (SICR) (continued)

Financial instruments for which is determined that there is a significant increase
in credit risk are transferred from stage 1 to stage 2 and impairment loss is
measured based on lifetime expected credit loss.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
relative to initial recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns
to being measured as 12-month ECL.

Some qualitative indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or
forbearance, may be indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after
the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Company determines
a probation period during which the financial asset is required to demonstrate
good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently.

When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria
for recognising lifetime ECL are no Jonger met includes a history of up-to-date
payment performance against the modified contractual terms.

Movements {credit rating deteriorations) within the investment grade (IG)
classification will not be deemed as a SICR. Based on the intenal model we
have developed, the fitted Sovereign PDs for IG ranges from 0.01% to 0.35%
will not recognize as a significant deterioration in credit quality.
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JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(@.i.2)

(a.ii.3)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Company considers both quantitative and qualitative factors in determining
whether a financial asset is in default, examples of these include:

- The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its obligation to the Group.

- A decrease in internal rating beyond specific rating thresholds

- The borrower is unlikely to pay its obligation to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing security. This may
arise from instances such as bankruptcy, long-term forbearance, insalvency,
breach of financial covenants, death and restructuring.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and
their significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

Financial assets classified as ‘default’ are transferred to stage 3 and impairment
loss is measured based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or
Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability
of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default (EGD),
defined as follows:

e  The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired” above),
either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime
(Lifetime PD) of the abligation.

s  EAD is based on the amounts JEF expects to be owed at the time of
default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime EAD). For example, for a revolving commitment, JEF
includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is
expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of
default, should it occur.
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JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22.  Financial Risk Management {continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.ii.3) Measuring ECL - Explanation of inpufs, assumptions and estimation
technigques (continued)

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents JEF’s expectation of the extent of
loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type
and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.
LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of
default (EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where
12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default
occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected
lifetime of the loan.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure or collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for the
likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an
earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The
discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest
rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current
12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio
from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of the loans.
The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed
to be the same across all asseis within a portfolio and credit grade band.
This is supported by historical analysis.
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22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.ii.3} Measuring ECL - Explanation of inpufs, assumptions and estimation
techniques (continued)

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is based on the
contractual repayment owed by the borrower over a 12month or lifetime
basis. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by
a borrower. Early repayment/refinance assumptions are also incorporated
info the calculation.

For revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted by taking
current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion factor” which
allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of
default, These assumptions vary by product type and current limit
utilisation band, based on analysis of the Group’s recent default data.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which
impact the recoveries made post default. These vary by product type.

For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type and
projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book values due
to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery casts observed.

For unsecured products, LGD’s are typically set at product level due to the
limited differentiation in recoveries achieved across different borrowers.
These LGD’s are influenced by collecticn strategies, including contracted
debt sales and price.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. These assumptions vary by
product type. Refer to note 22(a)(ii).4 for an explanation of forward-
looking information and its inclusion in ECL calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation - such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc. - are
monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis.

There have been no significant changes in estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the reporting period.
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.il.4) Forward-looking information incerporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-
looking information. The Company has performed historical analyses and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
losses for each portfolio. Based on the analysis performed on different macro-
cconomic variables, knowledge of the business and risk profile of the industry,
for its loans portfolio the Company considers Real GDP growth as the main
macro-economic factor that has significant influence over the portfolio quality.
Macroeconomic adjustment has been applied to the PD in the Group’s model
however no impact on the LGD is considered due to limitation of data.

With regard to the investment portfolio and the instruments contained within,
the approach that management has adopted a scorecard approach. This approach
considers several macroeconomic indicators that are available and uses a
duplicable process to apply forward-looking information. The Caribbean faces
unique challenges with regard to the availability of data. There are only a few
macroeconomic indicators which are updated with timely information and for
which forecasts are available and the Company has selected the following
indicators:

Debt to GDP

Current account to GDP
GDP growth

Net International Reserves
Annual inflation rate

Management performs a trend analysis and compares the historical information
with the available forecasted data to determine whether the indicator represents
a positive, negative, or stable trend. Each trend (positive, negative, stable) hasa
multiplier attached based on economic evidence of the losses incurred by
financial institutions during each trend period. The weightings of the various
macroeconomic indicators are determined using management’s expert
judgement and are multiplied by the applicable multiplier based on the trend of
the individual indicator.

Management then determines 3 scenarios as being base, upside, and downside
using expert judgment of the overall economic conditions and business
environment within the jurisdiction. The base scenario is always given the
highest weighting as it is based upon third party forecasted information and is
the most likely scenario to occur. The upside and downside scenarios are then
weighted accordingly per management’s expert judgment.
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iii)

Maximum exposure 1o credit risk

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial
instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross carrying
amount of financial assets below also represents the JEF’s maximum exposure
to credit risk on these assets.

Loans
2019 2018
ECL staging

Stage 1 Sate 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime Lifetime

_ECL ECL ECL Total Total

$000 000 $000 £000 5000
Credit Grade
Standard monitoring 27,846 1,819 - 29,665 10,447
Special monitoring - - - - -
Default - - 244 244 -
Gross carrying amount 27.846 1,819 244 29.909 10,447
Loss allowance 3%0 33 244 667 -
Carrying amount 27456 1.786 - 29,242 10,447
Investments

2012 2018
ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total

12-month Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL ECL

TT’000 TT'000 TT'000 TT 00 TT'000
Credit Grade
Watch 364 - - 364 -
Speculative - - - = -
Carrying Amount 364 - - 364 -
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22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk {continued)

(a.iii)

{a.iii.1)

(a.iii.2)

Maximum exposure to credit risk (continued)

Information on how the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured and how the
three stages above are determined is included in note 22(a)(ii}1) ‘Expected
credit loss measurement’.

Maximum exposure to credit risk - Financial instruments not subject to
Impairment

The following table contains an analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure
from financial assets not subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (eg FVTPL):

Maximum Exposure to

Credit Risk
$°000
Financial Assets Designed at Fair Value through PL
Debt Securities 76

Collateral and other credit enhancements

Prior to its commencement of its consumer finance business which is generally
unsecured lending, JEF employed & range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most common of these 1s accepting collateral for funds
advanced. JEF had internal policies on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation.

JEF prepared a valuation of the collateral obtained as part of the loan origination

process. This assessment is reviewed periodically. The principal collateral types
for loans and advances are:

e  Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

e«  Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts
receivable; and

e  Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.
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22.  Financial Risk Management {(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iii.2) Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured;
revolving individual eredit facilities are generally unsecured,

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances
depends on the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other
eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed
securities and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments.

With the change in business focus to consumer lending which is generally
unsecured, JEF’s policies regarding collateral have significantly changed during
the reporting period.

Prior to this change, JEF closely monitored collateral held for financial assets
considered to be credit-impaired, as it became more likely that JEF will take
possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. Financial assets that
are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential
losses are shown below:

Gross Impairment Carrying Fair Value of
Exposure Allowance Amaount Collateral
$000 £000 $000 $000
Credit Impaired Assets
Retail 244 244 - -
Corporate/Commercial - fraenias i = -
Tatal Credit
Impaired Loans 244 244 e T
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22, Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
(a.iv) Loss allewance

The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors,
as described below:

o  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases (or decreases) of credit risk or becoming
credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” {or “step down™)
between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

e  Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the
period, as well as releases for financial instruments de-recognised in the
period;

o  Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs
in the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

e  [mpacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and
assumptions;

¢  Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured
on a present value basis;

o  Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign
currencies and other movements; and

¢  Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances
related to assets that were written off during the period.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the
beginning and the end of the annual period due to these factors:
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22.  Financial Risk Management {continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance {continued)

Retail

Loss allowance as at | April 2018
Movements with P&L impact

Transfers:
- Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
= Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
- Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
- Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financial assets originated
or purchased
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Changes to model assumptions and
methodologies
Modification of contractual cash flows
of financial assets
Financial assets derecognised during
the period
Write-offs

Loss allowance as at
March 31, 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ___ECL ECL Total
$000 $'000 $*000 $'000
107 527 - 634
390 i3 - 423
- = 244 244
(107) (527) - {634)
390 33 244 667
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(a) Credit risk {continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance (continued)

Investment Portfolio
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
12 menth  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL __ ECL ECL Total
£'000 $'000 5000 §$'000
Carvying Amount as at April 1, 2018 - - =
Transfers:

- Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
= Transfer rom Slage 2 to Stage 3
- Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage |
Financial Assets Detecognized
New linancial assets originated

or purchased -
Madification of contractual cash Mows

of financial assets - - - -
Changes 10 model assumptions and

methodologics 364 - - a4
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADSs S = 0 e

&

Cuorrying amount as at March 31, 2019 364 - o =

Credit Policy prior to April 1, 2018

Impaired loans and Investments

These are loans and securities for which JEF determines that it is prabable that it
will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual
terms of the loan/securitics agreement(s).

Past due but not impaired loans

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due
but JEF believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of
security/collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed to
JEF.
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22,

Financial Risk Management {continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance (continued)

Note:

(2)

The unwind of discount on Stage 3 financial assets is reported within ‘Interest
Income’ so that interest income is recognised on the amortised cost (after deducting
the ECL allowance).

Investment Portfolio
Stage 1
12 month
ECL
5000

Stage 2

Lifetime

ECL
5000

Stage 3

Lifetime

ECL
$'000

Total
§$'000

Loss pllowance as ai
April 1, 2018
Movements with
P&L impact
Transfers:
= Transfer from
Stage | 1o Siage 2 - - - -
- Transfer from
Stage 1 (o Stage 3 - - - -
= Transfer from
Stage 2 1o Stage 1 - - - -
Mew financial assels originated
or purchased -
Changes in PDs/L.GDs/EADs - - - -
Changes to model assumptions
and methedologies 4 - - 4
Modification of contraciual
cash flows of financial assets - - - -

Laoss sllowance ag at
March 31, 2019
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Loss alfowance (continued)

Retail
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
$:000 5000 $'000 $°000
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2018 4,811 5,636 - 10,447
Transfers: -
= Transfer from Stage ) to Stage 2 - - - -
= Transfer from Stage [ to Stage 3 - - - -
- Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - - - -
- Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - -
-  Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - - - -
Financial assets derecognised during the
period other than write-offs {4,811 (3,636) - (10447)
New financial assets originated
or purchased 27,846 1,819 244 29,909
Paydowns
Medification of contractual cash flows
of financial assets - . - -
Changes in interest accrual - - - -
Write-offs - - - -
FX and other movements - - - -
(iross carrying amount as at
March 31, 2019 27,846 1LE19 244 29,909
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22.  Financial Risk Management {(continued)
(a) Credit risk {continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance (continued)

Investment Portfolio
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
12 menth  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL __ ECL ECL Total
£'000 $'000 5000 §$'000
Carvying Amount as at April 1, 2018 - - =
Transfers:

- Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
= Transfer rom Slage 2 to Stage 3
- Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
- Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage |
Financial Assets Detecognized
New linancial assets originated

or purchased -
Madification of contractual cash Mows

of financial assets - - - -
Changes 10 model assumptions and

methodologics 364 - - a4
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADSs S = 0 e

&

Cuorrying amount as at March 31, 2019 364 - o =

Credit Policy prior to April 1, 2018

Impaired loans and Investments

These are loans and securities for which JEF determines that it is prabable that it
will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual
terms of the loan/securitics agreement(s).

Past due but not impaired loans

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due
but JEF believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of
security/collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amounts owed to
JEF.
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Loss allowance (continued)
Credit Policy prior to April 1, 2018 (continued)

Renegotiated and Restructured Loans

Renegotiated loans are extensions of credit which have been modified at
favourable terms and conditions for the borrower such as variation in interest rates
or increased lending. That is, there is no inherent weakness in the credit being
rescheduled/refinanced.

Restructured loans are facilities which have been refinanced, or otherwise
modified as a result of an assessment of the borrower’s inability to service the
facility in line with the original repayment terms and conditions, As conditions
precedent ta a restructuring, the obligor must demonstrate the capacity to service
the debt under the new conditions imposed by the restructured facility and the
facility must be fully secured with standard ioan to value margins restored which
may require additional or up-stamped callateral.

Allowances for impairment

JEF establishes allowances for impairment or provisions in respect of individual
financial assets which are not performing satisfactortly. These provisions are
based on an assessment of the recoverability of collateral held as security on the
facilities which is discounted using the original interest rate over the expected
recovery period. Any shortfall of these expected recoverable amounts when
compared to principal outstanding is recognised in profit or loss.

Write-off policy

JEF writes off a loan/investment balance (and any related allowances for
impairment losses) when the Chief Risk Officer, the Management Credit
Committee or the Board Credit Committee (as per the delegated limits approved
by the Board) determines that the loans/investment are uncollectible. This
determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the borrower/issuer’s financial position such that the
borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from the
liguidation of the collateral will not be sufficient to fully liquidate the exposure.
For the year ended March 31, 2019 the amount written off was NIL (2018: NIL).
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22, Financial Risk Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)

(a.iv) Lass allowance (continued)
Credit Policy prior te April 1, 2018 (continued)

Collateral held

JEF holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of
mortgage interest over property, other registered charges over assets, and
guarantees, Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at
the time of borrowing. Annual property inspections are performed by
management on the corporate and commercial portfolio. Collateral generally is
not held over loans and advances to banks, except when securities are held as part
of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral is not usually
held against investment securities, and no such collateral was held at March 31,
2018 or 2017.

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held
against loans and advances to other customers is shown below:

Loans and advances to customers

__ 2019 2018
5008 3’000
Against individually impaired
Other 37 -
Against past due but not impaired
Propenty - 936
Other 3,723 -
Against neither past due nor impaired
Property - 14,800
Other 21.600 11,083
Total 23,360 26,819
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

JEF monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An
analysis of concentrations of credit risk of loans and advances and investment securities
at the reporting date is shown below:

Loans and Advances Investment
to Customers Securities
2019 2018 2019 2018
$°000 $°000 $2000 $'000
Gross amount 29,909 10,447 440 3.359
Concentration by sector
Corporate/commercial - 8,293 2,857
Sovereign - - 364 386
Bank - 76 116
Retail 29,909 2,154 - -
Equity - - S -
22300 10447 A0 3,330
Concentration by location
Trinidad 29,909 10,447 76 2,973
Regional - - 364 386
22,200 10,447 440 3,359

Concentration by location for loans and advances is measured based on the location of
the obligor. Concentration by location for investment securities is measured based on the

location of the issuer of the security.

{b) Settlement risk

JEF’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions, Settlement
risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a company to honour its obligations to deliver
cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.

Settlement limits form part of the credit approval/limit monitoring process. Acceptance
of seftlement risk on trades requires transaction specific or counterparty specific
approvals from the Risk Unit.
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22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that JEF is unable to meet its payment obligations associated
with its financial habilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are
withdrawn.

Management of liquidity risk

JEF’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both ngrmal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to JEF’s reputation.

The Treasury Unit receives information regarding the liquidity profile of JEF’s financial
assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future
business. Treasury then maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up
of short-term liquid investment securities and other inter-bank facilities, which can be
used for liquidity support, if needed. The liquidity requirements of JEF are met through
funding sourced by Treasury to cover any short-term fluctuations and longer term funding
sourced by the business units.

The daily liquidity position is monitored by the Treasury Unit. Daily reports cover the
liquidity position of JEF and is submitted to the Risk Management Unit. A summary
report, is submitted regularly to the Asset and Liability (ALCO) with any exceptions and
remedial action taken, also submitted Board Risk Committee for review and monitoring.

Exposure to liquidity risk

Apart from monitoring of daily cash forecasts and concentration risks, a key measure
used by the Treasury Unit for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of liguid assets to total
assets. For this purpose, liquid assets are defined as comprising primary cash reserves
held at CBTT, cash balances in excess of cash reserves at CBTT, mandatory special
deposits with CBTT, cash held at other financial institutions net of unpresented cheques,
cash held in house and Treasury Bills/ Open Market Operations (OMOs) maturing within
one year. Reported hereunder is the ratio of liquid assets to total assets on all currencies
at the reporting date and during the year:

2019 2018
At March 31
Average for the year 4401 38.48
Maximum for the year 83.59 45.73
Minimum for the year 15.04 28.40
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities
The table below shows the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Gross
Nominal One Over
Carrying  Inflow/ Up to to Five  Five
Amount {Qutflow}) One Year Years Years
$'000 51000 $000 5000 $'000
2019
Customer deposits
and other funding
instruments 226 (228) (228) - -
Amount due to
parent 23294 (23,294) (23,294) - -
Other liabilities 1,091 (1.091) (1.091) - -
24,611 (24,613) (24,613) - -
2018
Customer deposits
and other funding
instruments 224 (226} {226) - -
Amount due to
parent 950 (950) {950) - -
Other liabilities 411 (411) {411) - -
1,585 {1,587) {1.587) - -

The table above shows the undiscounted cash flows on JEF’s financial liabilities on the
basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. JEF’s expected cash flows on these
instruments could vary from this analysis. For example, demand deposits from customers
are expected to maintain a stable or increasing balance.
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22.  Financial Risk Management {continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis for financial liabifities (continued)

2019

Less

than 3 3to12 Over 12

Months Months Months Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 5000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,977 - - 9,977
Balances with Central Bank 712 - 151 863
Loans and advances 3,096 8,592 17,554 29,242
Investment securities 76 - 364 440
Total assets 13,861 8,592 18,069 40,522
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits - 226 - 226
Amount due to parent - 23.294 - 23.294
Total liabilities - 23,520 - 23,520
Net gap 13.801 (14,928 18,069 17,002
Cumulative gap 13,861 (1,067 17,002 =
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)
{c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities (continued)

018

Less
than 3 3to12 Over 12
Months  Months Months Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,881 - - 11,881
Balances with Central Bank 148 - 20 168
Loans and advances 592 1,286 8,569 10,447
Investment securities 2.973 - 386 3.359
Total assets 15,594 1,286 8,975 25,855
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits - 224 - 224
Amount due to parent - 950 - 950
Total liabilities - 1.174 - 1,174
Net gap 15,594 112 8975 24,081
Cumulative gap 10004 15,706 24,681 C

(d) Market risks

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates will affect JEF’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Management of market risks

JEF holds no exposure to actively traded portfolios. With the exception of translation risk
arising on JEF’s net balance sheet position, all foreign exchange risk within JEF is
managed by the Treasury Unit.
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22. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(d) Market risks (continued)

Management of market risks (continued)

The Board Risk Committee reviews and approves the risk policies recommended by
management and makes recommendation to the Board of Directors as appropriate.
Overall management of market risk is vested in the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO}.
The Risk Unit is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies
and for the day-to-day review of their implementation.

Exposure to interest rate risk — non trading portfolios

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from
fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a
change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for re-pricing gaps. The
ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits and is assisted by the Risk
Unit in its day-to-day monitoring activities, The table below summarises JEF's exposure
to interest rate risks. Included in the table are JEF's assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Interest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities

019

Non-
Within3 3to 12 1to5 Over5 Interest

Months Months  Years Years Bearing Total

3000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 9,977 9,977
Balances with Central Bank - - - - 863 863
Loans and advances - 2,744 26,498 - - 29,242
Investment securities 76 - - 364 - 440
Other assets - - . - 5,811 5.811
Total assets 76 2744 26498 364 16651 46,333
Liabilities and equity
Customers’ deposits - 226 - - - 226
Amount due to parent - - - - 23,204 23,294
Other liabilities and equity - - - - 22813 223813
Total liabilities and equity - L - 46,107 46,333
Net gap 16 2518 26498 364 (29456) -
Cumulative gap J6 2594 29092 29456 - -
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22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities {continued)

2018
Non-

Within3 3t012 1to5 OverS Interest

Months Months Years Years Bearing Total

S0 5000 5000 3000 5000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 11,881 11,881
Balances with Central Bank - - - - 168 168
Loans and advances - 221 2,252 7,974 - 10,447
Investment securities 2,973 - - 386 - 3,350
Other assets - 11 - 501 512
Total assets 2,973 221 2,263 8,360 12,550 26 367
Liabilities and equity
Customers’ deposits - 224 - - - 224
Amount due to parent 950 - - - 950
Other liabilities and equity - - - 25,193 25.193
Total liabilities and equity _950 224 - = 251931 26,367
Net gap 2.023 3) 2263 8360 (12.643) -
Cumuiative gap 2023 2020 4283 12,643 - -

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by
monitoring the sensitivity of JEF's financial assets and liabilities to various standard and
non-standard interest rate scenarios. Standard scenarios that are considered on a monthly
basis include a 100 basis point (bp) parallel fall or rise i interest rates.
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22,  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Market risk {continued)
Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities (continued)

An analysis of JEF’s sensitivity to an increase or decrease in market interest rates is as

follows:
50bp S50bp
100 bp 100 bp Increase Decrease
Paraliel Parallel After 1 After 1
Increase Decrease Year Year
In thousands of dollars
2019
At March 31
Average for the year 9 (9 5 (5)
Maximum for the year 25 (25) 13 (13)
Minimum for the year 1 (D - -
2018
At March 31
Average for the year (12) 12 (10) 10
Maximum for the year (n 14 (6) 14
Minimum for the year (12) 11 (14) 6

Overall non-trading interest rate risk positions are managed by the Treasury Unit, which
uses investment securities, advances to banks and deposits from banks to manage the
overall position arising from the JEF’s non-trading activities.

Exposure to currency risk

The techniques used by JEF to manage currency risk vary subject to market conditions.
Assets are primarily funded from liabilities of the same currency, thus eliminating
currency risk. Foreign currency transactions have not required the use of interest rate
swaps, foreign currency options or other derivative instruments. JEF does not trade in
foreign exchange and therefore has no trading position subject to currency risk.

79



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED

(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

22,

Financial Risk Management (continued)

{d) Market risk (continued)

Exposure te currency risk (continued)

Assets

Cash resources
Investment securities
Loans and advances
Deferred tax

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Customers' deposits
Amounts dve to parent
Other liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

Total liabitities and equity

Net balance sheet position

Agssets

Cash resources
Investment securities
Loans and advances
Deferred tax

Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Customers' deposits
Amounts due to parent

Other liabilities
Sharcholders’ equity

Total linbilities and equity
Net bhalance sheet position

2019
TT Us Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
10,704 136 10,840
76 364 440
29,242 - 29,242
1,393 - 1,393
4417 1 4418
45.832 501 46,333
226 - 226
23,000 294 23,204
1,088 3 1,091
21,720 2 21,722
46,034 299 46,333
(202) .| 7 =
2018
TT us Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
11,273 776 12,049
2,973 386 3,359
10,447 - 10,447
28 - 28
483 1 484
25,204 1,163 26,367
224 - 224
- 950 950
401 10 411
24782 - 24.782
25.407 960 26,367
(203) 203 =

As at March 31, 2019 there were no credit commitments (201 8; NIL).
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22.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with JEF’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from
legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate
behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of JEF’s operations and are faced by all
business entities.

JEF’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to JEF’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to the Operational Risk Management Committee. This
responsibility is supported by the development of overall JEF standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas:

® Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent
authorisation of transactions

s Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions

¢ Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements

¢ Documentation of controls and procedures

o Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy
of controls and procedures to address the risks identified

¢ Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action

e Development of contingency plans

e Training and professional development

e Ethical and business standards

¢ Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

A significant component of operational risk that has become increasingly prevalent in the
business environment and that affects the operations of JEF, is technology and
information security risk. JEF acknowledges that the constantly evolving nature of
technology and its importance in the conduct of financial transactions globally, have

increased the risk of attacks on the networks and systems that support electronic and
digital information and transactions flow.
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22. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(e

®

Operational risk (continued)

The impact of any such attack on JEF’s technology and information systems includes,
among others, unauthorised access to these systems, loss, misappropriation and
destruction of data including that of customers and other stakeholders, critical system
unavailahility, increased costs of operations, potential fines and penalties for breaches of
privacy laws, reputational damage and financial loss.

JEF has adopted a proactive, enterprise-wide approach and has implemented appropriate
processes and controls across all its critical electronic interfaces and touch points to
continuously monitor, manage and mitigate the impact of this risk on its networks,
systems and other technology infrastructure in order to safeguard its information and
other assets and by extension those of its customers and other stakeholders. This is
supported by ongoing updates to its technology infrastructure, system vulnerability
assessments, training of it team members and sensitisation of customers and other
stakeholders to any new and emerging threats.

Compliance with JEF standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews
undertaken by Internal Audit.

Business continuity

JEF’s Business Continuity Plan {BCP) encompasses a defined set of planning,
preparatory and related activities which are intended to ensure critical business functions
will either continue to operate despite serious incidents or disasters that might otherwise
have interrupted its operations, or will be recovered to an operational state within a
reasonably short period. The oversight of Business Continuity falls largely within the
sphere of Risk Management,

The Objectives of the BCP are to:
1.  Protect human life.

2. Identify processes critical to the operations of JEF and safe guard the Company’s
assets,

3. Provide tested plans which, when executed, will permit timely and efficient
recovery and resumption of the Company’s critical business functions.

4, Minimize the inconvenience and potential disruption of service to internal and
external customers.

5.  Describe the organizational structure necessary for executing the plan.

6.  Identify the equipment, procedures and activities for recovery.
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22.  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f) Business continuity (continued)
The Objectives of the BCP are to: {continued)

7. Ensure that the reputation and financial viability of the Company is maintained at
all times.

8.  Ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.

The BCP is focused on minimizing the down time and data loss within the thresholds
identified by the bank. The plan is meant to minimize the Joss to the Company and or
negative impact to customer service as a result of serious incidents or disasters that may
occur for some time.

JEF standards are supported by periodic reviews undertaken by the Internal Audit
department.

23.  Capital Management

Regulatory ecapital

JEF’s lead regulator, The Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago (the Central Bank}, sets and
monitors capital requirements for JEF. In implementing current capital requirements, the
Central Bank requires that JEF maintains a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted
assets.

Regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

o  Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, retained earnings, statutory reserve
after deductions for intangible assets, and other regulatory adjustments relating to items
that are included in equity but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes. These
capital elements are considered core because they are either: (i) permanent in nature, or
(i1) available ta absorb losses while the institution remains a going concern.

¢  Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities, collective impairment
allowances and the element of the fair value reserve relating to unrealised gains on
instruments classified as available-for-sale.

The existing capital framework identifies various elements of the capital base: Qualifying Tier
2 capital cannot exceed Tier 1 capital, the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk weighted
assets is 4% and the minimum total capital to risk weighted assets is 8%. There are also
restrictions on the amount of collective impairment allowances that may be included as part of
Tier 2 capital. Other deductions from capital include the carrying amounts of investments in
subsidiaries that are not included in the regulatory consolidation, investments in the capital of
banks and certain other regulatory items.
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23.

Capital Management (continued)
Regulatory capital {continued)
JEF’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base in line with its defined risk appetite.

JEF has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year. JEF’s
approach to capital management has been consistent with prior years.

The Central Bank has communicated its intention to replace the existing capital management
framework by implementing Basel Il and some aspects of Basel III in 2019,

Management is of the view that JEF will comply with the new capital adequacy requirements,
based on the results of a series of quantitative impact studies (QIS) conducted by the Central
Bank.

JEF’s regulatory capital position at March 31 was as follows:

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital 15,000 15,000
Statutory reserve 2,044 2,044
Retained earings 4,674 7,204
21718 24248
Tier 2 capital
General loss reserve - 534
Disallowed general loss reserve - (365)
Fair value reserve for available-for-sale equity securities 4 -
Teotal regulatory capital 21,722 24417
Risk-weighted assets
Loans and advances, investment securities
and other assets 34962 13177
Capital ratios
Total regulatory capital expressed as a percentage of
total risk-weighted assets _62.12% ___185.30%
Total tier 1 capital expressed as a percentage of
risk-weighted assets 62.13%  184.02%
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24,

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

fa)

Valuation models

The fair value of financial instruments that are recognised on the statement of financial
position and the fair value of financial instruments that are not recognised on the
statement of financial position are based on the valuation methods and assumptions set
out in the significant accounting policies note 3(b).

JEF measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1 - Quoted market price (unadjusied) in an active market for an identical
instrument.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less active;
or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique included inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are based on quoted
prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models,
comparison with similar instruments for which observable market prices exist and
other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other inputs used in
estimating discount rates, bond prices, foreign currency exchange rates and expected
price volatilities and correlations.

Judgement is used in applying a wide range of acceptable valuation techniques and
estimations in the calculation of fair value amounts which is based upon market
conditians at a specific point in time and may not be reflective of future fair values.
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24,  Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

(b} Financial instruments measured as fair value — fair value hierarchy

(c)

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorised:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000
2019
Government bonds - - 364 364
Corporate securities - - 76 76
- - 440 _ 440
2018
Government bonds - - 386 386
Corporate securities 76 - 2.897 2973
L - 3,283 3.359

Level 3 fair value measurements
(i) Reconciliation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the
ending balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Government

Bonds Other Total _

$°000 $°000 $°000
219
Balance at April 1 386 2,897 3,283
Additions
Settlements 22) (2.821) (2.843)
Balance at March 31 364 76 440
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24. TFair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

(c) Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

(i}  Reconciliation (continued)

Government

Bonds Other Total _

$°000 $°000 $'000
2018
Balance at April 1 408 2,854 3,262
Additions - 43 43
Settlements (22) - (22)
Balance at March 31 386 2,897 3,283

(ii) Unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value

The following table sets out information about unobservable inputs used at year end
in measuring financial instruments categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Range of
Estimates Fair Value
(weighted- Measurement
Type of Fair Values Significant average) for Sensitivity to
Financial at March Valuation Unobservable Unobservable Unobservable
Instrument 31, 2019 Technique Input Inputs Inputs
Bond 364 Valued at par  There is no N.A, N.A,
active market
for these bonds.
Other 76 Valued at par No prices available N.A. MN.A.

For these investments

87



JMMB EXPRESS FINANCE (T&T) LIMITED
(formerly Intercommercial Trust and Merchant Bank Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

24.  Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

(d} Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table set out the estimated fair value of financial instruments not measured
at fair value and analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each
fair value measurement is categorised.

Total Total

Fair Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Amovont
$000 000 $°000 $°000 $000

2019
Assets
Loans and advances - - 29,242 29242 29242
Other assets, prepayments
and accrued income - - 1,099 1.099 1,099
- - 30,341 30341 30,341
Liabilities
Customer deposits - - 226 226 226
Amounts due to parent - - 23,204 23,294 23,294
QOther liabilities and accruals - - 911 911 911
= - 24431 24431 24431
2018
Assets
Loans and advances - - 10,447 10,447 10,447
Other assets, prepayments
and accrued income - - 116 116 116
- - 10,563 10,563 10,563
Liabilities
Customer deposits - - 224 224 224
Amounts due to parent - - 950 950 950
Other liabilities and accruals - - 394 394 394
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25.  Earnings per Share

Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit afier tax by the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year.

_2019 2018
Profit/(Loss) after tax ($000) (2,430) 314
Number of shares in issue (‘000) 5000 15000
Earnings per share =000¢  002¢

26.  Events after the Reporting Date

There are no events occurring after the statement of financial position date and before the date
of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors that require adjustment to or
disclosure in these financial statements.
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